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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Haiying, aged 66, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 January 2012 and was re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company in
February 2012. Mr. Xu is the senior technical consultant and
senior manager of FEIEIEEIRIREEE B R A 7] (China Jieneng
Huangbao Group Company Limited*), whose principal business
is the development of energy conservation technologies, clean
and new energy, and energy infrastructure construction. Mr. Xu
has substantial management experience and has been the
manager of the representative offices of Wallem & Company
Limited (ZEMMTEEBE AR A A]) in Shanghai and Tianjin, The
People’s Republic of China and the chief representative of the
Shanghai representative office of Hong Kong Maritime
Company Limited (& /& /8 & B R 2 7)) and has served other
management positions. Mr. Xu currently serves as an executive
director of Fujian Nuogji Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)).
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE  SAREEERET

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P, (Australia), aged 51, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11
June 2012 and was re-designated as an Executive Director of
the Company in August 2012. Dr. Ou holds a Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Civil & Resource Engineering from The
University of Western Australia, Australia. He also holds two
Bachelor of Engineering degrees in Engineering Management
& Structural Engineering respectively from Tongji University ([A]
JEARZ). Dr. Ou has over 30 years of professional engineering
and management experience in oil & gas, mining and
infrastructure industries both in Australia and China. He has
been a senior staff member in the world’s leading energy &
resource firms including Kellogg Brown & Root (formerly known
as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as well as Sedgman
Ltd., which is specialising in coal processing and handling
plants. He was an independent non-executive director of Rey
Resources Limited (a company listed on ASX focused on
exploration and developing energy resources in Australia). Dr.
Ou participated in a number of key energy and resource
projects around the world such as acting as the Lead Civil and
Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton RGP6 Jimblebar project; Rio
Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion project; Chevron
Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project; Yemen LNG Project
(in the Republic of Yemen) and Western Australia Dampier to
Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline (Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou
also has extensive experience and network in China. He was the
general manager of &3 & 2R BAE 5 T 32 2 & (Fujian Liming
Construction Company*) from 1993 to 1997. He was a Guest
Professor for Inner Mongolia University (A5 & AZ) and Inner
Mongolia University of Science & Technology (N5 & BHE K £)
in China. Currently, Dr. Ou is an executive director of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1341), which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in September 2013. Mr. Fok was also
the directors of various subsidiaries of the Group and has been
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since December
2010. In addition to the responsibility to oversee the Group’s
finance unit and functions, Mr. Fok also involves in the
formulation of strategic plans for the business development of
the Group, fund raising activities and potential merger and
acquisition activities of the Group. Mr. Fok holds a master
degree in business administration from the University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Fok currently
serves as an executive director and a co-chief executive officer
of Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited (stock code: 1341), which is a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE  SAREEERET

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 47, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March
2012. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South
Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in
Accounting and Computer Information Systems. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Certified Practising Accountants,
Australia. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, investment and financial management. Mr. Chan is
currently an investment manager of Sprint Asset Management
Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
(stock code: 871), Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 747), Up Energy Development Group
Limited (stock code: 307), Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code:
1353) and Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code:
3991), whose securities are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as independent non-
executive director of L&A International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8195), Far East Holdings International Limited (stock code:
36) and Life Concepts Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Dining Concepts Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8056) on 3
March 2017, 18 July 2017 and 12 December 2018 respectively.

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing, aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2012. Mr. Lam graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with a degree in Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He has more
than 21 years of experience in the commercial and corporate
finance field. Currently, Mr. Lam is a director of China Natural
Resources, Inc. since 2003 (a company listed on NASDAQ), and
an executive director and the chief executive officer of SFund
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1367) and an
independent non-executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings
Limited (stock code: 102), which are both listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam was an executive director
of China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1004) from August 2010 to August 2017.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 48, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has
extensive experience in the fields of auditing, accounting and
finance. Mr. Lee currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of China Fortune Investments (Holding)
Limited (stock code: 8116), Farnova Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited) (stock
code: 8153) and Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8112), which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He
currently serves as the independent non-executive director of
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
(stock code: 1341), Up Energy Development Group Limited
(Stock code: 307) and Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 1353),
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He
was also an independent non-executive director of Teamway
International Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1239) from
March 2015 to August 2017, and an executive director of Link-
Asia International Co. Ltd. (formerly known as China Healthcare
Enterprise Group Limited) (stock code: 1143) from November
2015 to December 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE  SAREEERET

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (FREE ), was appointed as the company secretary
on 1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise in
Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. She is
also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan has many
years of experience in advising on corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate governance, regulatory and compliance
matters. Prior to joining the Company, she was the company
secretary and general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed
Financial Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has a
bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
the University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of corporate

finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Chi Hang, aged 38, joined Hao Tian Finance Company
Limited as vice president on 2 February 2015 and had assumed
as General Manager in Hao Tian Credit Company Limited since
1 October 2017. Mr. Lau graduated from Benedictine College in
USA with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce. Mr. Lau has more
than 10 years of experience in the banking and financial sector.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Lau had worked in South
China Financial Credit, Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited, and Bank of China Credit Card Center.
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On behalf of Hao Tian Development, | hereby present the

annual results of the Group for the Year.

During the Year, Hong Kong's economy faced severe challenges
as weakened by the prolonged Sino-US trade tensions and
further struck by the persistent social unrests since the second
half of 2019 which pushed it to the first annual recession in a
decade. The announcement from the World Health
Organization to declare COVID-19 outbreak as a “public health
emergency of international concern” has further slowed down

Hong Kong's economy dramatically.

The Group continues to explore the opportunities to diversify
its investment portfolio and realize investment which would
create benefit the Group. In March 2020, the Group sold
2,833,901,650 shares of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 412.HK) for a total consideration of
approximately HK$807.7 million which became available for the
development of other business of the Group or for general

working capital of the Group.

The Group actively explored investment opportunities with a
view to diversify its business and enhance its asset portfolio.
During the Year, the Group completed the acquisition of the
minority interest in a property development company, which is
principally engaged in property development in the PRC. The
Group believes the acquisition of the equity interest in a
property development company would diversify its assets
portfolio in term of geographical coverage and an opportunity
to build up relationship with business partners in real estate
market in the PRC. In addition, the Group has acquired 50%
equity interests of a wholly-owned subsidiary of CA Cultural
Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1566.HK), which is
engaged in multimedia animation entertainment business and

holds the intellectual property rights of certain cartoon figures.
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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EERESE

During the Year, the Group continued the corporate
restructuring, including the acquisition of the minority interest in
Hao Tian Finance Company Limited and the transfer of the
entire equity interest in Hao Tian Credit Company Limited to
the Group's listed subsidiary, Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (or HTICI). Through the
above transactions, the Group would maximize the share of
earnings in money lending segment and allow HTICI to increase
its scale in the money lending business, expand its network
coverage and customer base and thereby enhancing
competitive advantage in the money lending industry in Hong
Kong that may create long-term benefit to HTICI and the
Group.

For the existing business, despite the interest rate hikes of the
central banks of major countries and rising international
financing costs, there is still a strong demand for our money
lending services. However, we will take a prudent approach
under such circumstances. The Group remains confident in the
prospect of the licensed financial business market in Hong Kong
and we will continuously focus on the development of our
financial business leveraging on our full range licenses and
management experience. During the Year, the Group has set
up the first fund with Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman)
Limited with total assets under management (“AUM") of
USD86,947,770 as of 31 March 2020 which aims to achieve long-
term capital appreciation by investing in listed and unlisted
companies located in Greater China or deriving a preponderant
part of their income and/or assets from Greater China, and will
benefit from China’s economic growth. This allows the Group to
earn stable management and advisory fee income and
performance bonus, which is a new source of income to the
Group.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all Shareholders for their tremendous
support, and to our Directors, management and staff for their
invaluable contributions to the Group. The Group will focus on
streamlining the existing businesses and explore new business
opportunities to achieve returns for our Shareholders.

Dr. Zhiliang Ou

Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Money Lending Business

During the Year, the money lending business of the Group
generated interest income of approximately HK$75.0 million
(2019: approximately HK$73.5 million), representing an increase
of approximately 2.0% as compared with Previous Year. The
main business of this segment includes provision of property
mortgage loans and personal loans to customers in Hong Kong.
The increase in interest income was mainly attributable to the
increase in personal loans during the Year. As at 31 March 2020,
the outstanding loan receivables of the money lending business
of the Group (net of impairment) was approximately HK$786.5
million (2019: approximately HK$555.3 million).

Securities Investment Business (financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss)

During the Year, the net realised gain from the disposal of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") was
approximately HK$16.6 million (2019: approximately HK$2.7
million) and the unrealised fair value loss from financial assets at
FVTPL, comprising listed equity securities in Hong Kong and
unlisted funds, was approximately HK$23.8 million (2019:
approximately HK$402.6 million).

As at 31 March 2020, the value of listed equity securities in
Hong Kong, unlisted funds and financial derivatives held by the
Group which were classified as financial assets at FVTPL
amounted to approximately HK$374.0 million (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$1,643.8 million). Details of the Group's equity
securities investments and financial derivatives classified as

financial assets at FVTPL are set out as follows:
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WK

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) XK ERE (&)
Securities Investment Business (financial assets at fair HENEER(UATESFEREEELEA
value through profit or loss) (Continued) T” BmZETMEE)(E)
Unrealised Percentage
fair value oftotal  Percentage
Number of - Percentage of (loss)/gain financial of total
shares  shareholdings for the year assets at assets of
heldat  at 31 March Fair value ended Fair value FVTPLat  the Group at
31 March 2020 at 31 March 31 March  at 31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 (note 1) 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020
RZB-%E
Zh=t-A
BE HAATE
It i 23 HEEH R-B-EF
R-B-8F ST gfitA =A=t-A

R-B-%F  ZA=1-8 RoE-nF LEECRR RIBCEE BREYER AEE
ZR=t-R  ZBRAES =A=t-A RATE =ZA=t1-H BEAE BELE
FERHHE (W1 ZAVE  (BR)/kE PN PAY 1 PAZi)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 T Fin ThL
Company Name/(Stock Code) ARER/ (RHRS)
China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial PRLESRSREEERLA 1)
Group Limited (412) 26,064,000 0.11% 1,093,226 2,346 9,774 261% 0.19%
Carnival Group International Holdings R ERERAR (%)
Limited (996) 90,610,000 0.38% 4259 (33%3) 906 0.24% 0.02%
Imperial Pacific International Holdings BEATEEARERERAR (107¢) 2
Limited (1076) 4,062,000,000 2.84% 253075 (60,930) 174,666 46.71% 347%
Far East Holdings International Limited (3¢) ~ EREREBERAF (36) 4,983,000 0.46% 2018 (1,285) 733 0.20% 001%
Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (925) 3t Rk (121}) BR A 925) 8,140,000 0.12% 1,986 (1,139 847 0.23% 0.02%
Up Energy Development Group Limited (307) BikétR%EEBHER A (307) 371,500,000 8.19% = = _ = i
CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (1566) ZE Ut B EBAER 7] (1566) 3 35,890,000 390% 78,58 35,308 107,670 2879% 2.14%
Atlantis China Fund Atlantis China Fund 4 NARER  NATER - (8,770) 31,04 8.30% 0.62%
Riverwood Umbrella Fund Riverwood Umbrella Fund 5 NATER  NATER - (7,51) 19,180 513% 0.38%
Unlisted debt instrument FLTEHIA NATER  NATER - 473 12383 331% 025%
Financial derivatives SRTETR NATER  NATER - 16,760 16,760 4.48% 0.3%%
Disposal securities HERL NATER  NATER 210,685 = = = =
W8 @S B o 74

As investment in equity securities accounts for a significant HRAEBEEERET KBLHRREEBESFRE
portion of the Group's total assets, the management will closely HERBH T EEKRELESHERIEEARTF
monitor the investment portfolio and capture opportunities fEFfEBHEZFABSEZSMEECREKS
arising from investments in financial assets at FVTPL in a AR TFERERR °

prudent manner and balance investment risks.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities investment business (financial assets

designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income)

During the Year, there was a realised gain on financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") of approximately HK$11.4 million (2019: HK$Nil). As
at 31 March 2020, the aggregate value of unlisted equity
investments held by the Group which were classified as financial
assets designated at FVTOCI amounted to approximately
HK$351.6 million (2019: approximately HK$117.5 million). Such

value comprised of unlisted securities investments set out as
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Unrealised Percentage
fair value of total
(loss)/gain and financial ~ Percentage of
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Percentage of Carrying  loss) for the Carrying ~ designated at of the
shareholdings amountat year ended amount at FVTOC! at Group at
at 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020
R-B-EF
Bz ZR=1-A
k23 Rz
=B=1-H NATE
LFEZ FEEES W-ECEf
FERATE FARMEE  ZA=t-A
R-BZ2E  W-E-NE (FR)/ HN-3-3% WEzem EAER
EiEr=6 SiEr=E k%% =R=t-B BEAE BELHE
ZERESY ZIEEE (REFR) ZREHE ZBAM LA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i Tién Tin Titn
Company Name ARER
Goodwill International Goodwill International b
(Holdings) Limited (Holdings) Limited 7.54% 36946 (9.424) 21522 7.83% 0.55%
Co-lead Holdings Limited Co-lead Holdings Limited 7 142% 41,500 (13,800) 21,700 7.88% 0.55%
Disposed unlisted investment HEFE FRE = 20079 = & = =
Quan Yu Tai Investment EURREERAH 8
Company Limited 15% - 4912 296,39 84.29% 589%
117,525 (18312 351,618 100% 6.99%
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Securities investment business (financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income) (Continued)

Notes:

16

The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the
monthly return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the month
ended 31 March 2020 of the issuers publicly available on the website of
the Stock Exchange.

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Imperial”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively called “Imperial Group”) were principally
engaged in the gaming and resort business, including the development of
an integrated resort on the Island of Saipan, Commonwealth of the

Northern Mariana Islands.

During FY2020, there was unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$60,930,000 arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. No dividend has been received during FY2020. Pursuant to Imperial
Group's annual result announcement for the year ended 31 December
2019, Imperial Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$539.3 million
and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$3.9 billion. In August
2014, Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Imperial, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
Islands entered into a casino license agreement in respect of the exclusive
casino resort developer license for the Island of Saipan. On 6 July 2017,
the casino portion of Imperial Palace ® Saipan commenced operation (with
maximum capacity of up to 193 tables and 365 slot machines upon
completion of Imperial Palace ® Saipan). On 10 July 2019, Imperial Group
acquired 50% equity interest in American Sinopan LLC, which (among
others) owns two pieces of land on the Island of Saipan for the Imperial
Casha Hotel. The Imperial Group expected that the lands can be
constructed with more than 1,700 rooms for Imperial Casha Hotel. It was
believed that with the gaming capacity of Imperial Group to be further
enhanced and the development of supporting facilities, new customers
will continue to be attracted to Saipan and hence create value to the
shareholders of Imperial Group.

The Group disposed 301,360,000 share of Imperial Group during FY2020.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) E¥BoE (&)

Securities investment business (financial assets EEREEX(BEEUATEFEREEE L
designated at fair value through other comprehensive FtAREMZHEWGE 2 EMEE) (&)
income) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MR : (88)

CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (“CA Cultural”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “CA Cultural Group”) were principally engaged
in the trading of animation derivative products, establishment and
operation of indoor theme parks and multimedia animation
entertainment.

During FY2020, there was unrealized fair value gain of approximately
HK$35,308,000 arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. No dividend has been received during FY2020. Pursuant to CA
Cultural Group's interim report for the period ended 30 September 2019,
CA Cultural Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$236.1 million
and total comprehensive income of approximately HK$4.9 million. As
mentioned in CA Cultural Group's interim report, with “Theme park +
animated-derived products” businesses as basis, CA Cultural Group
cultivates business model with a combination of “VR Technology +
Culture and Creative + light asset with the integration of Park and Land
Resources” to further boost the power and profitability. Together with the
world-class R&D team — CA SEGA Japan under the CA Cultural Group
and strategic cooperation agreement with Huawei to jointly develop
5G+VR Cloud technology, the Group is optimistic with the investment in
media, entertainment and cultural industry.

The Group acquired 49,089,000 shares and disposed 45,800,000 shares of
CA Cultural during FY2020.

Atlantis China Fund (the “Atlantis Fund”) may invest in a wide range of
listed securities issued by listed companies established in or whose
principal place of business is located in the PRC and Hong Kong, including
but not limited to listed equities, preferred stocks, convertible securities,
notes and other financial products. The Atlantis Fund may hold ancillary
liquid assets, denominated principally in H.K. Dollars, Renminbi and U.S.
Dollars, including cash deposits and money market instruments. It was
believed that with the reputable investment track record of the investment
manager, the Fund investment would provide the Group with opportunity
to enhance investment returns in light of the uncertain and challenging
economic environment.

During FY2020, there was unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$8.8 million. No dividend has been received during FY2020. The Group
subscribed the Atlantis Fund during FY2020.

3. FEEHREEAERAR(EEXL])) REMEBE QR

(5 [EEXEE) T2 EHENEERBE R
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R-E-_TERREE - WATFENEAESFAR
HZEMBEESEREE N FEWEE435,308,0007 7T ©
AEER T _TFEHBFELARKIRE - RIEFEE
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BIEEE L EERSREL 2361 BER TR EZE KRGS
BEHIOEEBT - BUEE L EERHREME
EEVEEE [TELE+BETEER] EHNER
F BB IVREIHH+ LA B+ A S LEN L ERA
HEE | AMEBER  E—SIRAHBE N REFRE
HoRBEEBXEBETEAEE HZERRMAEE
B - WERESEBHUMBAERS - BFITESGHRER
7 AEEHIERE IR CELEREEE -

RZZ_TFEPEEFE - REEKE 49,089,000 %815 -
3 i 45,800,000 A% 2 B XL ©

4. Atlantis China Fund ([ Atlantis China Fund|) ] §£3% & A

EHBEREBKLHE T EEE MR REEL
ETMRARBTHEE LHES - REETRR EWRE -
BER - TERES  FEEREMSESHER  Atlantis
China Fund AJ B EZLAE T - ARBRETFER
WHRDEE  ETEEREFAREEMISIA - K
SEBEE  BEARRELCERINKRERE BEK
BRENERTWMKE  ESREBANEEIREREA
REBR K -

RIT_ZEHRFE HAZEATEBEALSSE
BEL - ARER_Z_ZFUBRFELRKIIKE -
REBER =T S FHEFERHE Atlantis China Fund °
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WK

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Securities investment business (financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

18

Riverwood Umbrella Fund (the “Riverwood Fund”) may invest at least
50% of the in listed equities of companies located in the Greater China
Region (which includes Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
or deriving income and/or assets from Greater China Region. The
Riverwood Fund may invest in Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs), US
Government stocks, US Treasury securities and derivative products. It was
believed that with the reputable investment track record of the investment
manager, the Fund investment would provide the Group with opportunity
to enhance investment returns in light of the uncertain and challenging
economic environment.

During FY2020, there was unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$7.5 million. No dividend has been received during FY2020. The Group
subscribed the Riverwood Fund during FY2020.

Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited ("Goodwill Int’l”) invested in a
number of property investment projects in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
properties would be sold to market upon completion of each projects,
and investors (including Goodwill Int’l) would receive dividend. No
dividend has been received during FY2020. There was no acquisition or
disposal of Goodwill Int'l during FY2020.

Co-lead Holdings Limited (“Co-lead”) is principally engaged in trading of
securities, provision of finance and holding of investments in financial
services industry. No dividend has been received during FY2020. There
was no acquisition or disposal of Co-lead during FY2020.

During FY2020, the Group acquired 15% equity interests in Quan Yu Tai
Investment Company Limited (“Quan Yu Tai"”). Quan Yu Tai holds 90%
equity interest in He Ying Tung Investments Company Limited (“He Ying
Tung”). He Ying Tung, through its various indirect wholly-owned or non
wholly owned subsidiaries, is principally engaged in property
development in the PRC. He Ying Tung principally has 3 property projects
under development located in the municipalities of Changsha, Chenzhou
and Hengyang of Hunan Province, the PRC, mainly consisting of large-
scale residential complex projects and integrated commercial complex
projects, as well as apartments, offices, shopping arcades, cinemas and
other supporting facilities. No dividend has been received during FY2020.

Annual Report § 3k 2019/20
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Rental of a Mixed-use Property in the United Kingdom

During the Year, the rental income derived from the mixed-use
property in the United Kingdom, 55 Mark Lane, contributed
revenue of approximately HK$64.3 million (2019: approximately
HK$66.3 million) and there was a fair value gain on investment
property of approximately HK$139.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$38.7 million). Our investment returns came
from both appreciations in asset value based on valuation and
the cash flow generated from the rental income. The rental
income has been relatively stable, and the fluctuation in rental
income was mainly caused by the depreciation of GBP during
the Year.

Construction Machinery Business

During the Year, the construction machinery and sales of
construction materials contributed revenue of approximately
HK$137.8 million (2019: approximately HK$162.4 million) and a
segment loss of approximately HK$11.7 million (2019: segment
loss of approximately HK$10.0 million). There was a goodwill
impairment loss of approximately HK$86.4 million in respect of
the goodwill allocated to Crawler Krane Business Limited and

its subsidiaries recorded during the Year.

Asset Management, Commodities, Futures and
Securities Brokerage and Other Financial Services
Business

During the Year, asset management, commodities, futures,
securities brokerage and other financial services segment
contributed revenue of approximately HK$18.6 million (2019:
approximately HK$15.5 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$16.8 million (2019: approximately HK$21.6
million). The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the
increase in income generated from assets management services

and consulting services.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group had incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$283.7 million for the Year (2019:
loss of approximately HK$380.9 million). The decrease in loss
attributable to owners of the Company during the Year was
mainly due to the net effect of (i) the change in fair value loss on
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$7.2 million (2019:
approximately HK$399.9 million); (ii) the fair value gain on
investment property of approximately HK$139.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$38.7 million); and (iii) the expected credit loss
on financial assets of approximately HK$270.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$2.6 million).

Administrative Expenses

During the Year, the administrative expenses were
approximately HK$188.5 million (2019: approximately HK$219.5
million), representing a decrease of approximately HK$31
million or 14.1% as compared with Previous Year. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs and legal and

professional expenses incurred during the Year.
Finance Costs

During the Year, the finance costs were approximately HK$183.2
million (2019: approximately HK$141.4 million), representing an
increase of approximately HK$41.8 million or 29.6% as
compared with Previous Year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in borrowings to finance the

acquisitions during the Year.
Taxation

During the Year, the net income tax expense was approximately
HK$10.5 million (2019: tax credit of approximately HK$63.9
million). The income tax expense was mainly related to the
profit generated from the money lending business and property

leasing business.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

During the Year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$283.7 million
(2019: approximately HK$380.9 million) which was attributable
to the factors mentioned above.

Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources

The Group mainly financed its operations from a combination
of operating cash flows, borrowings and equity. As at 31 March
2020, the Group had bank balances and cash (including
pledged bank deposits) of approximately HK$386.7 million (31
March 2019: approximately HK$271.7 million). The Group's
working capital decreased to approximately HK$584.7 million
(31 March 2019: approximately HK$1,762.6 million).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had outstanding borrowings
(including secured notes, unsecured notes and convertible note
payable) of approximately HK$2,155.2 million (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$2,430.9 million). The Group had various
banking facilities provided by financial institutions in Hong Kong
which were secured by certain assets of the Group, including (i)
the Company’s certain equity interests in its subsidiaries; (ii)
certain bank deposits; (iii) certain machinery and motor vehicles;

and (iv) certain loan receivables.

Gearing ratio (being the ratio of total borrowings, including
secured notes, unsecured notes and convertible note payables,
to total assets) as at 31 March 2020 was 42.8% (31 March 2019:
43.8%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to

the repayment of certain borrowings during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had capital commitments which
amounted to approximately HK$11.4 million (31 March 2019:
approximately HK$19.3 million). As at 31 March 2020, the capital
commitments in respect of addition of property, plant and
equipment and investment were mainly related to the
investment in a company in the PRC amounted to RMB10.0
million (equivalent to HK$10.9 million) (31 March 2019: the
purchase of construction machineries for rental purpose). The
investment agreement in respect of the investment in the said
company has subsequently been terminated subsequent to 31
March 2020.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group provided guarantee amounting
to HK$Nil (2019: HK$10.2 million) to banks in respect of
obligations under finance leases and the Group's obligations
under contracts with certain third party customers. Under the
guarantees, the Group would be liable to pay the banks if the
Group failed to perform relevant obligations to these
customers. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no provision for the
Group's obligation under the guarantee contracts had been
made as the Directors considered that it was not probable that
the repayment of the finance lease obligations were in default
and it was not probable that a claim would be made against the

Group.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2020.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group's revenues and other income are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), United States
dollars ("US$"), pounds sterling (“GBP") and Renminbi (“"RMB").
The Group's purchases and expenses are mostly denominated
in HK$, US$, GBP, RMB, Japanese Yen and Euro Dollar. The
Group has certain foreign currency bank balances and
investment in foreign operations, which are exposed to foreign
currency exchange risk. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure of the Group from time to
time and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.
Employee Information

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of approximately
197 employees (31 March 2019: 227 employees) in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group maintains a mandatory provident fund
scheme for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes for its employees in
the PRC. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated
according to market practices, experiences, skills and
performance of individual employees and are reviewed on an

annual basis.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme. A summary of the share option scheme of the
Group is set out in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. Details of the share award scheme
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
September 2013.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed below, no material acquisition and disposal of

subsidiaries were conducted by the Group during the Year.

Transfer of Hao Tian Credit Company Limited (“Hao
Tian Credit”)

On 10 September 2019, Hao Tian Finance Company Limited
(“Hao Tian Finance"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as seller, Hao Tian International Financial Holdings
Limited (“HTIFH"), being a wholly-owned subsidiary of HTICI,
as purchaser, and HTICI, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which HTIFH conditionally agreed to
acquire, and Hao Tian Finance conditionally agreed to sell, the
entire issued share capital of Hao Tian Credit at a consideration
of HK$213,000,000, which was satisfied in full by the issue of the
convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$213,000,000 by
HTICI to Hao Tian Finance upon completion. Hao Tian Credit is
a licensed money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Cap. 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and is principally engaged
in money lending business in Hong Kong. The sale and
purchase of Hao Tian Credit constitutes a major and connected
transaction of HTICI and a discloseable transaction of the
Company respectively under the Listing Rules. Completion of
this transaction took place on 31 January 2020. Upon
completion, Hao Tian Credit was wholly-owned by HTIFH and
became an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The financial results, assets and liabilities of Hao Tian
Credit will still be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. For details of the transfer of Hao Tian
Credit, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 10 September 2019 and 31 January 2020.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Acquisition of fine arts for our new fund

On 12 July 2019, HTICI as purchaser, Opulent Elite Investments
Limited (“Opulent Elite”) as seller and Chen Tingjia as
warrantor, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which HTICI agreed to buy, and Opulent Elite
agreed to sell, a collection of six (6) sets of canvas and paper
painting art pieces (the “Fine Arts”) at a total consideration of
HK$80,000,000, which was satisfied in full by the allotment and
issue of 275,862,069 ordinary shares by HTICI to Opulent Elite at
HK$0.29 per share upon completion. The completion of the
acquisition of the Fine Arts took place on 30 August 2019. The
fair value of the consideration was determined to be
HK$84,300,000. Immediately after completion, HTICI transferred
the ownership in the Fine Arts by subscription in kind to a fund
in the form of a limited partnership registered in the Cayman
Islands, whose general partner and limited partner are the
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of HTICI. The Group intends
to attract professionals and/or institutional investors to invest in
the said fund, while continuing to provide investment advisory

services to the fund.

For details of the acquisition of the Fine Arts, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12 July 2019 and 30
August 2019.

Disposal of a property holding company

On 1 March 2019, Crawler Krane Business Limited (a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Bravo Rich Limited in relation to the
disposal of all issued shares in Chim Kee Crane Company
Limited at the cash consideration of HK$100,000,000. The
disposal constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules and completion of the disposal took
place on 29 April 2019.

For details of the disposal, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 1 March 2019 and 29 April 2019.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Subscription of participating redeemable shares in HT
Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund

On 10 May 2019, Fortune Jumbo Limited (“Fortune Jumbo”)
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) placed an
order with Haitong International Securities Company Limited
("Haitong Securities”) whereby Haitong Securities subscribed
for the participating redeemable shares in HT Riverwood Multi-
Growth Fund (“HT Riverwood") (Formerly known as “Riverwood
China Growth Fund”) on behalf of Fortune Jumbo at the
aggregate subscription price in the sum of US$16,000,000
(approximately HK$124.8 million) which was satisfied by way of
cash. The transaction, when aggregated with previous
subscription, constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Completion of the
subscription took place on 10 May 2019.

For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 10 May 2019.

Redemption of an interest in Haitong Global
Investment SPC Il

On 10 May 2019, Fortune Jumbo redeemed 300,000
participating, redeemable, non-voting shares designated as
class R share in the capital of Haitong Global Investment SPC |lI
at an aggregate redemption price of US$24,434,100 (equivalent
to HK$190,585,980) which is equal to the net assets value of
each share as at 9 May 2019 in accordance with the terms of its

private placement memorandum.

For details of the redemption, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 10 May 2019.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Acquisition of minority interest in Hao Tian Finance

On 8 July 2019, Century Golden Resources Investment Co., Ltd
("Century Golden") as vendor, Guo Guang Limited (a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as purchaser and the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Century Golden agreed to sell, and Guo
Guang Limited agreed to purchase, 200,000,000 ordinary shares
in Hao Tian Finance at a consideration of HK$200,000,000, which
was satisfied by way of issue and allotment of 800,000,000
ordinary shares by the Company to Century Golden at an issue
price of HK$0.25 per share under specific mandate of the
Company. Upon completion, Hao Tian Finance became an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Completion
of the acquisition of minority interest of Hao Tian Finance took
place on 20 August 2019.

For details of the acquisition, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 8 July 2019, 29 July 2019
and 20 August 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 8
August 2019, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Acquisition of 15% equity interests in an investment
holding company with property projects under
development

On 18 July 2019, Grace Dragon Holdings Limited (“Grace
Dragon”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
purchaser entered into an agreement with Mr. Chen Ping as
vendor in relation to the acquisition of 15% equity interests in
Quan Yu Tai Investments Company Limited ("Quan Yu Tai"),
pursuant to which Mr. Chen Ping agreed to sell, and Grace
Dragon agreed to purchase, 150 issued shares of Quan Yu Tai,
for an aggregate consideration of HK$320,000,000, which was
settled by the issue of the promissory note in the principal
amount of HK$320,000,000 by Grace Dragon upon completion.
Quan Yu Tai holds 90% equity interest in He Ying Tung
Investments Company Limited (“He Ying Tung”). He Ying
Tung, through its various indirect wholly-owned or non wholly-
owned subsidiaries, is principally engaged in property
development in the PRC. He Ying Tung principally has 3
property projects under development located in the
municipalities of Changsha, Chenzhou and Hengyang of Hunan
Province, the PRC, mainly consisting of large-scale residential
complex projects and integrated commercial complex projects,
as well as apartments, offices, shopping arcades, cinemas and
other supporting facilities. Completion of the acquisition of 15%

equity interests in Quan Yu Tai took place on 16 October 2019.
For details of the acquisition, please refer to the

announcements of the Company dated 18 July 2019 and 16
October 2019.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Disposals of listed securities

On 6 December 2019, Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong)
Limited (“"Hao Tian Management”), has entered into the sale
and purchase agreement with Billion Accomplish Limited and
Mr. Lau Mo, pursuant to which Hao Tian Management agreed
to sell an aggregate of 2,148,559,650 shares in China Shandong
Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited ("CSFG"), representing
approximately 8.8% of the then issued share capital of CSFG at
the sale price of HK$0.27 per share for a total consideration of
approximately HK$580.1 million. Approximately HK$78.4 million
has been paid by Billion Accomplish Limited as partial payment
and the remaining balance of approximately HK$501.7 million
shall be paid by Billion Accomplish Limited within 60 days after
the date of sale and purchase agreement. On 10 March 2020,
Hao Tian Management exercised its rights under a share charge
on the 2,148,559,650 shares in CSFG because Billion Accomplish
Limited failed to pay the balance of the consideration and all
the 2,148,559,650 shares in CSFG have been transferred to Hao
Tian Management as a result of the enforcement of the security

created under the share charge.

On 16 March 2020, the Company, through two subsidiaries, Hao
Tian Management and Glory Century Limited, entered into the
sale and purchase agreements with JS High Speed Limited for
the disposal of an aggregate of 2,833,901,650 shares in CSFG,
representing approximately 11.59% of the then issued share
capital of CSFG, at the sale price of HK$0.285 per share for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$807.7 million.
The disposals constituted a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules and was approved by way of written
shareholders’ resolutions of the Company pursuant to Rule
14.44 of the Listing Rules. The disposals were completed on 18
March 2020.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Disposal of listed securities (Continued)

For details of the disposal, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 6 December 2019, 31 December 2019, 4
February 2020, 10 March 2020, 16 March 2020, 25 March 2020
and the circular of the Company dated 17 April 2020,
respectively.

Purchase of USD bond-linked notes

On 3 January 2020, the Company and China Industrial Securities
International Brokerage Limited entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the purchase of the notes
issued by CISI Investment Limited in the aggregate nominal
amount of US$20,000,000 linked to the 11% guaranteed bonds
due 2020 issued by Tahoe Group Global (Co.,) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Tahoe Group Co., Ltd. which is a
property developer that focuses on the development of quality
residential and commercial properties in the economically
developed areas in the PRC, for a consideration of
US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$156,760,000).

For details of the purchase, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 3 January 2020.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Acquisition of 50% equity interests in a multimedia
animation company involving issue of convertible note
as consideration

On 5 March 2020, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with China Animation Holding (BVI)
Limited in relation to the acquisition of 50% of the issued share
capital of Success View Global Limited at the consideration of
HK$100,000,000, which would be satisfied by the Company
issuing the convertible note in the principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 on the completion date. The convertible note
carries zero interest and will mature on 25 March 2023. The
acquisition constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules and completion took place on
26 March 2020 whereupon convertible note in the principal sum
of HK$100,000,000 was issued by the Company. At the
completion date, the fair value of convertible note was
approximately HK$87,132,000.

For details of the acquisition, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 5 March 2020 and 26
March 2020.

Proposed Nuogi Transaction

On 6 November 2017, Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd (“Fujian Nuoqi”),
Zhong Hong Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands (“Zhong Hong"”) and Mr. Hu Yulin
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Fujian Nuogi has conditionally agreed to acquire, and Zhong
Hong has conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share
capital in Zhong Hong International Limited (the “Target
Company”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “Proposed Nuoqi Transaction”). The consideration
payable by Fujian Nuogi shall be HK$1,053,024,128 and shall be
satisfied by Fujian Nuogi by allotment and issue to Zhong Hong
of 1,541,878,659 new H Shares (the “Consideration Shares”),
credited as fully paid, at an issue price of HK$0.6829 per

Consideration Share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

Proposed Nuogi Transaction (Continued)

Assuming the Consideration Shares are fully issued, the

shareholding interest of the Company in Fujian Nuogi will be
diluted from 59.93% to 17.00% and the Proposed Nuogqi

Transaction will constitute a deemed disposal of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction is also subject to a number of

conditions precedent, including, inter alia:

(a)

the grant of approval by the Stock Exchange on the
resumption proposal and the resumption of trading in the

H Shares of Fujian Nuoqj;

the China Securities Regulatory Commission granting the
approval(s) necessary for the issue and allotment of the

Consideration Shares; and

the Executive of the Securities and Futures Commission
granting a waiver to Zhong Hong to the effect that neither
Zhong Hong nor any party acting in concert (as defined in
the Code on Takeovers and Mergers) (the “Takeovers
Code”) with it will be obliged to make a general offer for
the shares of Fujian Nuogi under the Takeovers Code as a
result of the allotment and issue of the Consideration
Shares to Zhong Hong.

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction was yet to be completed up

to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 April 2020, Hao Tian International Construction, a
subsidiary of the Company, and Oshidori International Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 622) (“Oshidori”) entered into the share
swap agreement that Hao Tian International Construction
agreed to issue and allot the 625,000,000 shares of Hao Tian
International Construction under the general mandate to
Oshidori or its nominee(s) in exchange of the 187,500,000 shares
of Oshidori from Oshidori on the terms and conditions of the
share swap agreement. All the conditions under the share swap
agreement have been fulfilled and the completion took place
on 28 April 2020.

On 22 May 2020, Hao Tian Management acquired a total of
11,185,000 shares of Haitong International Securities Group
Limited (stock code: 665) (“Haitong International”) for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$19,147,000
(including transaction costs) in a series of trades executed on
the Stock Exchange from 23 April 2020 to 22 May 2020. The
average purchase price (including transaction costs) for the
purchase of shares in Haitong International was approximately
HK$1.71 per share.

BEENWE D

REPREE

RZZEZZEFMNAZH ARAMBRARZKE
B EErRBRAR ((REE] BRHK
5% 622) AT MR B - Bt - 2 RBIRERRE
BRI 3% 2 G SR AR R — IR R M B
ERHE R R AT KL E 625,000,000 f% 2 K BIFR
R AR M - LA B g EE 2 A2 #R 187,500,000 A% Bk 2 2
& - MRHZ B TAEBRGEEZEX MR ZF
ZEFWMAZFTNREERK -

RZZEZZTFAAZ+=ZH EREEBE-ZZ=
EFENA -+ =HEE_ZT-_TFERA-+_H
LEEBRBRIMATERERSG NERERD
19,147,000 7T (B 3E 22 5 A AN ) W i /9 i B PR 7
FEEBRAG (EBER] - RO : 665) &
$£11,185,000 8 iz 0 - WEBR/GBRK KRG 2
FHEBE(BRERSKA)KIR1.718TT °

Annual Report 3§ 2019/20 33



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

On 5 June 2020, Success Destiny Limited (“Success Destiny”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Co-High
Investment Management Limited (“Co-High”) entered into the
subscription agreement and the shareholders’ agreement with
Genius Power Holding Limited (“Genius Power”) for the
formation of a joint venture to undertake the business of
development, manufacture, sale and distribution of therapeutic
and diagnostic assets in the Greater China area and Southeast
Asia. Under the subscription agreement, each of Success
Destiny and Co-High has agreed to subscribe for shares in
Genius Power such that Genius Power will be owned by Success
Destiny and Co-High as to 51% and 49% respectively. Pursuant
to the subscription agreement, the Company has conditionally
agreed to grant certain share options of the Company entitling
Co-High to subscribe for new Shares of an aggregate of
609,188,681 to be issued by the Company at the price of
HK$0.25 per Share (subject to adjustments) (the “Option
Shares”) commencing from the date of the deed to be entered
into between the Company and Co-High and ending on the
third anniversary of that date. The Option Shares will be allotted
and issued by the Company upon exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the Share Options under a specific mandate
to be sought from the Shareholders. The transaction has not

been completed as of the date of this report.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

While the outbreak of COVID-19 and possible escalation of the
Sino-United States trade war which affect the pace of global
economic recovery and the uncertainties in financial market, the
Group will continue its strategy to build a diversified portfolio of
businesses that can weather the uncertain market conditions
and to explore investment opportunities with quality assets and
potentials for income and capital value growth for the

Shareholders and investors of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (Continued)

The Group invests in premium commercial properties for
leasing in the UK. Situated in the heart of London, the Corn
Exchange in the City of London offers grade A offices, which
provides stable rental income and signifies our presence in the
market. During the Year, the Group has acquired 15% equity
interest in a property development group, which develops high-
quality large-scale residential complex projects and integrated
commercial complex projects with good locations that are
connected to main public transportation in Changsha City,
Chenzhou City and Hengyang City of the PRC. The Group
would continue to explore opportunities to invest in quality
assets in the real estate sector with potentials for income or

capital value growth.

Through continuous review and streamlining of our financial
businesses, we believe that in the coming years, the financial
services segment of Hao Tian International Construction will
grow and could leverage on Hong Kong's unique position as a
global financial center closely integrated with China and the
continuous development of China, especially the Greater Bay
Area. The Group is prepared to provide first class professional
financial services with strong support from the Company's
management team and partners from enterprises and financial
institutions in mainland China. We are organizing our businesses
and investments to ride on the tide of “neo infrastructure”,
intensify government-enterprise cooperation and lay down our

foundation to capture more future growth opportunities.

Meanwhile, as the Group fully supports the “Belt and Road”
initiative, the Group will acquire traditional financial institutions
with full licenses in those countries along the “Belt and Road”
regions through equity investment and takeover of the right of
operation by consolidating strong industrial support from
shareholders and platform resources, and riding on which, the
Group could gradually extend its footprint into internet finance,

a rapidly developing economic sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (Continued)

Genius Power is a new joint venture between the Company and
Co-High, through which, the Group can tap into the bioscience
industry by collaborating with life science companies over the
world with the aim to bring global life science assets and
intellectual properties to be developed, distributed and
commercialised in the Greater China area and South East Asia.
This joint venture will gain access to extensive life science
network, which primarily comprised of universities, research
institutions, life science companies, financial institutions and
investee companies. It is the vision of the joint venture to
address significant unmet medical needs in Greater China area
and Southeast Asia by developing and commercializing global
life science assets and intellectual properties with high

potential.

In light of the above, in consideration to the Group's specified
development path and clear growth philosophy, it is expected
that both its businesses and revenue will keep achieving steady

growth in the foreseeable future.
FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the Year (2019: Nil).
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. As at the date
of this annual report, its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
(i) money lending; (ii) securities investment; (iii) provision of
commodities and securities brokerage and other financial
services; (iv) asset management; (v) property leasing; and (vi)
rental and trading of construction machinery. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the

consolidated financial statements for the Year.
BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's financial and business
performance

A review of the Group's business and the analysis using the
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 13 to
23 of this annual report under the paragraphs headed "“Business
Review” and “Financial Review"” in the section headed
“"Management, Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
For the Year, the Group had incurred a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$283.7 million
(2019: loss attributable to the owners of approximately HK$380.9
million), which was mainly attributable to the expected credit
loss on financial assets of approximately HK$270.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$2.6 million). The gearing ratio (being the
ratio of total borrowings, including secured notes and
obligations under finance leases, to total assets) as at 31 March
2020 was 42.8% (31 March 2019: 43.9%). The decrease was
mainly attributable to the repayment of certain borrowings
during the Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to operating in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the Group's
existing business activities on the environment. During the Year,
the Group strived to build an environmentally friendly enterprise
with enhancement of energy usage efficiency, implementation
of various emission reduction measures and improvement in
resource usage efficiency. Details of the environmental policies
and performance will be set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company which will be available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on or
before the end of September 2020.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognizes the importance of having good working
relationship with its employees. During the Year, the Group has
not experienced any significant problems with its staff or any
significant labour disputes. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had
a total of approximately 197 employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group's remuneration policies are formulated
according to market practices, experiences, skills and
performance of individual employees and are reviewed every
year. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a
share award scheme, details of which are set out in the note 43

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to its immediate
and long-term business goals. During the Year, the aggregate
revenue and purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers were approximately 26% and 73% of
the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively. As at 31
March 2020, the majority of the Group's five largest customers
and suppliers have a length of relationship with the Group for

more than 10 years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Compliance with laws and regulations with significant
impact

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has
complied in all material respect with laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the Group.
Principal risks and Uncertainties

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may
affect the operations results and financial conditions of the
Group through risk management process, which including the

following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business

As at 31 March 2020, the outstanding loan receivables of the
money lending business of the Group (net of impairment) was
approximately HK$786.5 million, representing approximately
15.6% of the total assets of the Group. Any delay or default in
payment of the loans will have an adverse impact on the
Group's working capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits
of the Group.

To manage such risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide
appropriate security and closely monitors the loan receivable
collection cycle from time to time to ensure full and timely
collection of the outstanding amounts due from the borrowers.
The Group will assess and decide to enforce the security
provided by the borrowers or take legal actions as appropriate.
All exposures are subject to regular review and assessment for

possible impairment.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through
subsidiaries with appropriate licenses to conduct regulated
activities, insurance agency and money lending. During the
course of providing such financial services, the Group would be
exposed to compliance risk, including the risk of legal liability,
being subject to regulatory proceedings, disciplinary action, or
loss of property or business reputation arising from violation of
laws, regulations and rules due to the operation and
management or practices of the Group or its personnel. In
order to effectively control compliance risk, the Group has put
in place a practicable compliance management system and
provided resources and support to develop lawful and

compliance operations of the Group.
Financial risk

The Group's diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks,
such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details
of the financial risk management objectives and policies are set

out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the Year on pages 91 and 92 of this

annual report.

No final dividend was recommended by the Directors for the
Year (2019: Nil).
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$2,981.4 million
(2019: HK$3,029.4 million). The distributable reserves include
the Company’s share premium reserve of approximately
HK$4,531 million (2019: HK$4,353 million), which may be
distributed subject to Section 34 of the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company.
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 97 to 98 of this annual report.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements for the Year.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

40 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association and the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 310 of this

annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the

Year.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Haiying

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua

According to the Company'’s Articles of Association, Dr. Zhiliang
Ou and Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua shall retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years, which can be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. No Director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with any company in the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
confirmed their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as provided in the paragraph headed "Connected
Transaction” below, no other transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its ultimate
holding company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” below, at no time during the year under review
was the Company, its controlling shareholders, holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and neither the
Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

EERFTETHRAEREAQT R A
FEzROREBROTER ZERR

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY RE
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the W-ZZE-_ZTF=A=+—H BEFENARFTTE

N
0

Directors and chief executives of the Company in Shares, fTEAEBRARGHEEEEE (EEIESHF N
EIRBIEXVED) 2 Bxth - AR RERZF
BT ARE R %}&Hﬂ 5 {651 58 352 ik AR A R B
FEEZRMeERZRAR  BE ETWHRA LT
BITAESRE ﬁﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ—rﬁ”(rg SN
SITHEARRR R PTz Em SORRIAT ¢

\

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the S
FO, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"), were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying RAEXAFEERREERD ZEFR
shares of the Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of  underlying Total  total issued
chief executive Capacity Nature of interest shares held  shares held interests  share capital
HERT
B2/ PR3 P e RABE
FETHRARHS &t EmitE 8B ROEE BR%s  BNEH
(Note 1)
(M)
Fok Chi Tak Beneficial owner Personal interest 60,871,152 = 60,871,152 1.00%
EEE ERERAA EIN 23
Xu Haiying Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
EE EREAA EAER
Zhiliang Ou Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
BRE% EGEBA fEAEE
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan  Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%
FRsh 2 EGEAA Bz
Lam Kwan Sing Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
HE B EREAA BAE S
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%

EaSlAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Note:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 6,091,886,805
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2020.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of, the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Convertible Notes

On 5 March 2020, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited
("Hao Tian Media & Culture”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), as purchaser and the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement ("SPA”) with China Animation Holding
(BVI) Limited (“China Animation (BVI)", a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CA Cultural Technology Group Limited) as vendor
whereby Hao Tian Media & Culture agreed to acquire from
China Animation (BVI) 50% of the issued shares of Success View
Global Limited (“Success View") for a consideration of
HK$100,000,000 which was satisfied by the Company issuing the
zero coupon convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 due 2023 (the “Convertible Notes”) to China
Animation (BVI) upon completion of the acquisition on 26 March
2020. A maximum of 400,000,000 Shares will be allotted and
issued to China Animation (BVI) if the conversion rights attached
to the Convertible Notes are exercised in full at the conversion

price of HK$0.25 per conversion share.

Details of the SPA and issue of the Convertible Notes are set
out in the announcements issued by the Company dated 5
March 2020 and 26 March 2020 and in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 25
September 2015 and a share award scheme on 27 September
2013, respectively. Particulars of the Company’s share option
scheme and details of movements in the share options are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. There is
no share award granted under the share award scheme during
the Year. As at the date of this annual report, the total number
of Shares available for issue under the share option scheme was
328,430,310 shares, representing approximately 5.39% of the
issued shares of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The allotment and issuance of new emolument shares
to Mr. Fok Chi Tak

The Company issued and allotted 7,087,890 emolument Shares
on 26 September 2019 to Mr. Fok Chi Tak pursuant to the
directors’ service agreement dated 26 September 2016 for his
appointment as an Executive Director of the Company for a

term of three years, commencing from 27 September 2016.

Mr. Fok, being an Executive Director of the Company, is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the issue of the emolument Shares to Mr. Fok
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of such transaction were set out in the
announcement dated 26 September 2016 and the circular dated
26 January 2017 of the Company.

The related party transaction regarding the service agreement
as set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements

constitute a connected transaction of the Company.

Acquisition of Minority Interest in a Subsidiary
involving Issue of Consideration Shares

On 8 July 2019, Century Golden Resources Investment Co., Ltd.
("Century Golden”) as vendor, Guo Guang Limited (“Guo
Guang”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
purchaser and the Company entered into the sale and purchase
pursuant to which Guo Guang agreed to purchase from Century
Golden approximately 16.53% of the total issued share capital
of Hao Tian Finance Company Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company before the completion of the
acquisition, for a consideration of HK$200,000,000, which was
satisfied by way of issue and allotment of 800,000,000 Shares
(the "Consideration Share”) by the Company to Century
Golden at the issue price of HK$0.25 per Consideration Share.
The acquisition was completed on 20 August 2019.

Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)
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RZFE—AFHhA=Z+B RAGERELH
B_E—RNENATARAZESESREHZERE
B A AT RECE 7,087,890 R EEBNAR (D o ZE
ERBHEIRELESEARQRNITESM
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=% — N+t A N H - Century Golden
Resources Investment Co., Ltd. ([ Century
Golden|* fE /&% & 7 ) Guo Guang Limited
([Guo Guang| ' A AR ZEEZEMBAR ' /£
REF)RARBFGTLERE W B Guo
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Acquisition of Minority Interest in a Subsidiary
involving Issue of Consideration Shares (Continued)

Century Golden is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company and is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the acquisition
constituted a connected transaction of the Company. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 8 July 2019 and 20 August 2019 and the circular of the
Company dated 8 August 2019 respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following entities (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) have interests or
short positions of 5% or more in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the

SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company:

BHEXS (&)

WEHEBARLHER (PREBETRERS)
(%)

Century Golden R AR RIMB AR 2 FEREK
WE FTRAFEVAERMAERAR ZBEAL -
Hitt - WIESETEBK AR ZHAERS © #1575
ZHARRFHBAS IR T -—NAFLANBEZ
Z-NENAZTBZAEURARTBEHAZ
T-NFENANBZBHK -

EFERRRA QARG R EE R %
BzRERAR

R-CBE-_TBF=ZA=1+—HB BREBEFREQAE
ZITRABRAM  ATEB(BEFXARREETT
BABBRIN RAR AR D R ARRE A 1D A 5%
SR L2 BEIRR - AREREIRR ELHER
REBSRPEGRIIBEBHREFEZETER
RECMAXE STHEART

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying Total total issued
Name of shareholder Shares held Shares held  Capacity interests share capital
HERT
FEEBER gLl RABHE
BRREE, LB 2B ROBE 56 G EE BREIL
(Note 1)
(BtaE1)
Li Shao Yu (“Ms. Li") (Note 2) 3,061,584,773 - Interest of controlled 3,192,395,115 52.4%
FOF([FL L)) (HE2) corporations
et NGl S
130,810,342 - Beneficial owner

BERBEBA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FZERFRRWRARQA TR R IHEE RS P #

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND BrEERAXE (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying Total total issued
Name of shareholder Shares held Shares held  Capacity interests share capital
BRI
FREEER P R4 %E
RREEEHB 2B ROHE H6 Rt BHBEIY
(Note 1)
(PzE1)
Asia Link Capital Investment 3,061,584,773 - Beneficial owner 3,061,584,773 50.26%
Holdings Limited (“Asia Link") EmBEAA
(Note 2)
THEEERER AR ([EHE])
(FEE2)
Huang Shiying (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled 800,000,000 13.13%
corporations
At (H5E3) 3Nl
Huang Tao (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled 800,000,000 13.13%
corporations
e (fE3) BN
Century Golden Resources 800,000,000 - Beneficial owner 800,000,000 13.13%
Investment Co., Ltd. BEmBEAA
("Century Golden”) (Note 3)
Century Golden Resources
Investment Co., Ltd.
(TCentury Golden |) (FizE3)
China Construction Bank = 454,930,000  Interest of controlled 454,930,000 7.47%
Corporation ("China corporation
Construction Bank") (Note 4) R NG

FERRRITRIDBR AT
(T ENRRRAT]) (7L 4)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERFRRWRAQATR M R IHEER D P #
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND BB KRE (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying Total total issued
Name of shareholder Shares held Shares held  Capacity interests share capital
HERT
FEEER igsy il RAELE
RR®EE/ AR g8 ROBE &% BERE BARDH
(Note 1)
(&£ 1)
Haitong Securities Co., Limited = 1,950,523,833  Security interest 1,950,523,833 32.02%
("HSCL") (Note 5) ER#ER
BREHFROBRAA
(e@EH]) (M5)
CA Cultural Technology Group 372,585,332 400,000,000  Interest of controlled 772,585,332 12.68%
Limited (“CA Cultural”) corporation
(Formerly known as SRS A B
China Animation Characters
Company Limited) (Note 6)
ERVLRBEEEERAR
(B3] (FIEEER
BEVRERAR)(FizTe)
China Shandong Hi-Speed 385,000,000 - Interest of controlled 385,000,000 6.32%
Financial Group Limited corporation
("CSFG") (Note 7) REH L AR
FEILFRReREEERAR
((HFELREESR])
(FftEE7)
Safe Castle Limited (Note 7) 385,000,000 - Beneficial owner 385,000,000 6.32%

Safe Castle Limited (FftzE7)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

1.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 6,091,886,805
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2020.

These 3,061,584,773 Shares were held directly by Asia Link, which was
beneficially wholly-owned by Ms. Li.

Each of Mr. Huang Shiying and Mr. Huang Tao was deemed to be
interested in 800,000,000 Shares held by Century Golden pursuant to the
SFO by virtue of his controlling interest in Century Golden.

China Construction Bank, through Vandi Investment Limited, which is its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, held the call option to require the
Company to issue 454,930,000 ordinary shares (adjusted as result of bonus
issue of the Company as set out in the announcement dated 25 July 2017).
Central Huijin Investment Limited held 57.11% of the issued shares in
China Construction Bank.

HSCL, through Haitong International Holdings Limited, which is its directly
wholly-owned subsidiary, held 63.08% of the issued shares in Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, which in turn held 100% of the
issued shares in Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd (“HIFP Singapore”) and Haitong International Securities Company
Limited (“HISCL"). HIFP Singapore and HISCL held the security interests
in those 1,948,333,333 shares and 2,190,500 shares in the Company
respectively.

CA Cultural, through China Animation Holding (BVI) Limited, which is its
direct wholly-owned subsidiary, held those 372,585,332 shares and the
conversion rights of 400,000,000 shares in the Company. CA Cultural was
owned as to 56.69% by Bright Rise Enterprises Limited which in turn was
wholly owned by Newgate (PTC) Limited. Mr. Chong Heung Chung Jason
is the sole shareholder of Newgate (PTC) Limited. Based on the notices of
disclosure of interest, Mr. Chong and its concert parties pursuant to an
agreement under Section 317 of the SFO are deemed to be interested in
the 772,585,332 shares in the Company.

CSFG, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Safe Castle Limited,
held 385,000,000 Shares.
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253,061,584, 773 M BT ERERE - TH BT
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MR E % A RFEE L LR Century Golden FEH %
BEDZ REEBFRBERI REZEBHRBEA/RN
Century Golden Ffi#F 800,000,000 A% B 15 7 #E A i a5 o

AP R IR TIE B L5 2 A M B 22 &) Vandi Investment
Limited ¥/ A & sk R A ] 817 454,930,000 & 3@ A% (2
HBRA-Z—tFtA-TRHAZAEMBEA A E)#E
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NEFAPRERRITEETRN Z257.11% °

BREFFAHEEZEANBARSBRRZERARA
AFAEERBRBREFEEERAAEETRG
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71,948,333,333 % 52 2,190,500 A% A8 22 A1 AR 1 A HE B HE 4R

EEX L EREEEENBAREEDEEE (REER
ZE)BRAFIFAEARAI72,585332/ 5 & &
400,000,000 BB fn 2 4 - EE LA BB EERAR
A BB 56.69% 1 BA 5 1 % A R 2 7] Al A Newgate
(PTC) Limited & & # A ° Chong Heung Chung Jason 5t
4 B Newgate (PTC) Limited 2 1 — R 5 o {RIFH FE iR
A - Chong i A RE —BUTE A TRIBFF KRB E K
1 28 317 1& BT SR 7€ 175 5 #2 AR A 1A 772,585,332 iR AR A R iR
DHREEER °

AL R = R B iR L R 5 2 B KT BB A B] Safe Castle
Limited 4 385,000,000 f& &5 °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who have interests
or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available

to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board having regard to the Company'’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable

market standards.
The Company has adopted the share option scheme and the

share award scheme as incentives to the Directors and eligible

employees.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue and purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest customers and suppliers
were approximately 26% and 73% of the Group's total revenue
and purchases respectively and the revenue and purchase
attributable to the Group's largest customer and supplier were
approximately 10% and 51% of the Group's total revenue and

purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's

five largest customers or suppliers.
DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

According to the articles of association of the Company, the
Directors for the time being of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, shall
or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty in their

respective offices.

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover in

respect of legal action against the Directors during the Year.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during
the Year, at least 25% of the Company's issued Shares were
held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good

corporate governance practices and procedures that are

consistent with the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The

corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize on

a quality board of directors, sound internal control, transparency

and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all

relevant code provisions of the CG Code during the Year, save
and except Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.5.1:

i)

54

The CG Code recognizes the importance of the
management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the business. The Company has not
appointed the chairman and the Board provides
leadership for the Company. Having considered the
business operation of the Group at the material time, it is
believed that the Board, which consists of experienced
professionals, can function effectively as a whole, while the
Executive Directors along with other members of senior
management of the Company are effective in overseeing
the day-to-day management of the Group under the

strong corporate governance structure in place.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by an Executive
Director and comprises a majority of the Independent
Non-executive Director. The Board believed that an
executive Director involved in the daily operations of the
Company may be better positioned to review the
composition of the Board so as to complement the

Group's corporate strategy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success
of the Group and for its leadership, strategy planning, risk
management, corporate governance, financial performance and
culture. The Board has established Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Executive Committee, each with defined terms of reference
(available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange), which are on no less exacting terms than those set
out in the CG Code to oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board's

responsibilities.

The Board
EEE

SRR E

ERIER
EE HEE SAKEERRHRY LA

E% RESHE - BaER EER - UK
%fﬁﬁﬁﬂi BEERCNIEZLZES  FMWE
REZESRVITZES  XZB8 aﬁﬁ
%Um%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%@ﬂ(‘[%ﬁ A R B A FrEuh &
B HEFUTEREEERTAAME 2GR E
R BEERARTIFENERER - KRB
EFEWTHE -

Collectively responsible for promoting long-term success of the Company by providing leadership, strategic

planning and managing risk and supervising corporate governance, financial performance and culture
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK (Continued)

Each Committee has authority to obtain external professional
advice and to seek information from employees, and the
Company will provide sufficient resources to the Committees
for performance of its duties and responsibilities. Minutes of the
Committees meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
all decisions of the Committees are reported to the Board. To
further reinforce independence and effectiveness, all Audit
Committee members are Independent Non-executive Directors,
and the Nomination and Remuneration Committees have been
structured with a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors as members. Details and reports of the Committees

are set out below.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board has the responsibility of promoting the success of
the Company by formulating its strategic direction and
supervising its operations and affairs in an effective manner.
Each Director has a fiduciary duty and statutory responsibilities

towards the Company.

Each Director is aware of his collective and individual
responsibilities to all Shareholders and that he should give

sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

With the objective of enhancing shareholder value, the Board is
responsible for the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies and policies of the Group, management of the
business and affairs of the Group, and monitoring of the
performance of the management of the Group and is charged
with presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects
in its annual and interim results, other announcements
containing inside information and financial disclosures of the
Company required under the Listing Rules and other applicable

rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Role and function (Continued)

Some of the key responsibilities of the Board include:

establishing and maintaining the strategic direction and

objectives of the Group

evaluating significant investment proposals, major

acquisitions or disposals

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and

Committee Members

ensuring the financial statements are prepared to give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective
controls is in place to enable risks to be assessed and

managed

monitoring major capital transactions or other significant

operational or financial matters

monitoring the performance of management

Daily operations and management of the Group's business are

delegated to the management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES EEZ24HARNEZESER(E)

(Continued)

Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three

AR

Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive B IEHITEE -

Directors.

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZEEZHE

Executive Directors:
BITES !

Mr. Xu Haiying
BB L

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P.
BEiEL r AL

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
ELELE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
BREFZE ST A

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing
ME BT E

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua
TEELYE
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Member of the Executive Committee

MITZBEKE

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
REZESXRE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FTMEZESNE

Member of the Executive Committee

HITREEKE

Member of the Executive Committee

HITREEKE

Chairman of the Audit Committee
BEREEGTR

Member of the Nomination Committee
RELZEENKE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
FMEESEFE

Member of the Audit Committee
BEZEZEENE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REZEENE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

HEZBEKE

Member of the Audit Committee
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Composition (Continued)

Their biographical details are set out on pages 5 to 10 of this

annual report.

The three non-executive members of the Board, which
represented more than one-third of the entire Board, bring a
wide range of business and financial experience to the Board,
which contributes to the effective direction of the Group and
the development of the Group's strategies and policies and
promotes checks and balances of the management process to
safeguard Shareholders’ interest. The Board will review regularly
the Board's composition and considers that the composition of
the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board was also
satisfied that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent pursuant to the requirements of the guidelines
and the Company complied with the requirements under Rule
3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

A list of our Directors and their respective role and function has
been published on the website of the Company and that of the
Stock Exchange, and is also disclosed in relevant corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing

Rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Formal procedures were adopted by the Board for governing
the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors in

accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Each Director has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years,
subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three
years under the articles of association of the Company. Pursuant
to the articles of association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire by rotation and retiring Directors are eligible for re-
election in accordance with the articles of association of the

Company.

The Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to
be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as
an addition to the existing Board. The Board may from time to
time appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-

election.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, a shareholder
may serve the Company a written notice and follow the
designated procedures for nomination of Directors under the
articles of association of the Company, which are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Director’'s commitment

The Board meets at least four times a year at quarterly intervals
and holds additional meetings as and when the Board thinks
appropriate to discuss matters relating to the Group's
strategies, business operations, performance, governance and

material investments.

Attendance record of the Directors and committee members

for the Year are set out as follows:

SRERBE

ESSHARESEER (B)

BEE 2 E

SXeBFEIRFERTOAEE  IREF
ERPDEEREINRTER  UEBTEAHEAR
BREE - XBEE KB BARERRETH
ZEH-e

EXERZBEREBNAFE 2 HFEHIMT -

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEERY BTEERY
Executive Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee ~ Committee = Committee =~ Committee meeting
EZ® HTZEEE ENEEE REZEE  FMZEEE RRAE
Total number of meetings ~ ET&EHENY 15 7 2 1 1 1
Executive Directors: HiTES:
Mr. Xu Haiying TEEEE 12115 6/7  NANER NATNER  NATER 17
Dr. Zhiliang Ou BEmEL 14/15 77 N/ATER 1" 1 11
Mr. Fok Chi Tak EfELs 15/15 717 N/ATER N/A N N/A NiE 171
Independent Non-executive BV #HTEE
Directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan [ 444 5 4 14115 N/ATER 2/2 11 1/1 11
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing MEMEE 15115  N/AREA 2/2 11 1/1 11
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua TRELL 13/15 N/A NEHR 22 N/A T iEF N/A RNEH 1”1

The Board reviews the performance of the Directors regularly to
ensure they are contributing to the Board in a manner that
allows them to perform their responsibilities to the Company
and that they are spending sufficient time doing so. The Board
was satisfied that the Directors had a strong commitment to the
Company and positively contributed to the Board through their
participation in the Company’s affairs and the Board'’s
discussions and decisions, as reflected in their high attendance
record on the Board and its Committee meetings during the

Year.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Board process

All Board members have full access to relevant information both
at the meetings and at regular intervals. Notice of not less than
14 days was given to directors for the regular Board meetings.
The Company Secretary assists the Board in preparing the
meeting agenda and, during which, the Directors are consulted
for matters to be included in the agenda for all regular meetings
of the Board. It has been the practice of the Board and
accepted by all members of the Board that relevant information
of Board meetings will be sent to all Directors three days in
advance of the relevant meetings or any reasonable time before

such meetings.

Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, by all of
the Directors present. Board minutes are prepared and kept by
the Company Secretary recording in sufficient details the
matters considered and decisions reached by the Board or
Committees, including any concerns raised or dissenting views
voiced by any Director. All draft and final minutes of Board
meetings and meetings of Committees are sent to Directors or
Board Committees members as appropriate for comments,
approval and records. Board records are available for inspection

by any Director upon request.

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered having
a conflict of interest or material interests would not be dealt
with by way of written resolutions and a separate Board meeting
shall be held where Independent Non-executive Directors who
have no material interests should be present at such meeting.
Directors having a conflict of interest or material interests in a
transaction shall, before the meeting of the Board, declare his
interest(s) therein in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company, and shall abstain from voting on the
resolution(s) and shall not be counted in the quorum present at
such Board meeting. Such declaration of interests will be duly

noted in the minutes of the relevant Board meeting.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Board process (Continued)

The Company Secretary shall provide professional advice on
governance matters to the Directors. Members of the
management have been reminded that they have an obligation
to supply the Board and the Board committees with adequate
information on a timely basis to enable each of them to make
informed decisions. All Directors are entitled to have access to
board papers, minutes and related materials. The Board and
each Director have separate and independent access to the
Group's senior management. In addition, the Directors are able,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. The Board may resolve to provide appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the

relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the executive
Directors seek to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and

reliable information in a timely manner.

Induction, information and ongoing professional
development

Each newly-appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the required duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant statutory requirements of Hong Kong and received an
training with external legal adviser on director’s duties and
obligations and meeting with management for an overview of
the Group. Our Directors are kept informed from time to time
on the latest development of any changes to the regulatory
requirements and the status of compliance of applicable rules
and regulations by the Company as well as business

development and operation plans of the Company.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Induction, information and ongoing professional
development (Continued)

In compliance with code provision A.6.5, the Company has
arranged for, and provided fund for, the Directors and the
Company Secretary of the Company to participate in continuous
professional development organized in the form of in-house
training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep them
refreshed of their knowledge, skill and understanding on the
Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge
on the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes,

the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their
training records on an annual basis. For the Year, all Directors
have attended the training sessions arranged by the Company.
They have also attended and/or were given speech or training

materials at external seminars/training sessions.
Liability insurance for the Directors

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been arranged and is in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the

businesses of the Group and potential personal liabilities.
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy during the
year. A summary of such board diversity policy, the measurable
objectives set for implementing such board diversity policy, and
the progress made towards achieving those objectives are

disclosed as below.
The Board sets out its approach to achieving diversity in the

Board Diversity Policy which is available on the websites of the
Company.

64 Annual Report F%f 2019/20

ESSHARESEER (B)

RREY  ENRSEELRR ()

RETTAGRXEALSE  RARERHFESRR
RRBZRBWELINARNEIZIN - AT EHE

fEE > REHR SEEEER LT HILIR
HES FERESBEAS  REARYAEE
REEBZBM RWERSEEWER LD
HARCEE AR BRI ERLBDFIE 2R
b T AN -

2REZFEFRAARRREMESZIEIZ L8k -
RAFE 2RESHEHFAARRRLHEZE
FIERIR - REMLEINA & IEIRIE R, 3K
RZENTT S EIIREARELERIE

ESEERE

AEEERHAREERGRABEEZEEE
BRE AREEERAEESRASEAEH
EBREEEAZZEEMEEZRR

EETEZEE

ARBAMNAFEERNEETSZTLBER - 1HE
SEX2ZNLBRBE  RATHEESSZ T
EBRERMRELAFERRRSEKNZFRED
RIS ERFEMT -

EEeNEF2Z L EBRRAIARLEHKES
Tz EEE LS TTEBERN AR R £
AIHER] -



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)
Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board's composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
member’s appointments will be based on merit, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard

for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. The Board's composition will be
disclosed in the corporate governance report annually in

accordance with the Listing Rules.
Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring

implementation of the board diversity policy.
Diversity of the Board

The existing Board members are of different backgrounds,
qualifications and experiences, including extensive experiences
in resources, auditing, accounting, investment, corporate
finance, project development and management. In view of the
present size and complexities of the Group's operations and
the nature of the risks and challenges it faces, the Nomination
Committee considers the Company has achieved a right
balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity among

the present Board members.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

An Executive Committee was set up in June 2010 and comprises
all existing executive Directors. The Executive Committee
operates as a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board to enhance the efficiency for business
decisions. In accordance with its terms of reference, the
Executive Committee monitors the execution of the Company'’s
strategic plans and operations of all business units of the Group
and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating to the

management and day- to-day operations of the Group.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in May 2006
with specific terms of reference (as last amended and restated
with effect from 10 June 2019). During the Year and up to the
date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Ming Sun Jonathan, Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr. Lee Chi Hwa,
Joshua. The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and to supervise the Group’s statutory audit, interim and
annual accounts of the Group and internal control system. It
also acts as an important link between the Board and the
Company's auditor in matters within the scope of the Group

audit. Meetings shall be held at least twice a year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
included:

(@) reviewing the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the Year and the interim report and the
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2019;

(b) reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and ensured the compliance with relevant
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other statutory

requirements;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(c) reviewing the effectiveness of internal control and risk

management systems;

(d) meeting with the auditors to discuss any significant audit
issues or key findings noted during the audit of the
Group's final results for the Year and the unaudited interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2019; and

(e) reviewing its terms of reference and making

recommendations for amendments.

During the Year, no issues brought to the attention of the
management and the Board were of significant importance to

require disclosure in this annual report.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require that
proper whistle-blowing arrangements should be put in place by
which employees can report any concerns, including
misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting matters
and accounting practices, in confidence and without fear of
recrimination for fair and independent investigation of such
matters and for appropriate follow-up action. To this end and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
adopted an internal guidelines on whistle-blowing of concerns
on 21 June 2013.

In addition, the Company has also adopted a policy that subject
to prior approval by Audit Committee, no employees or former
employees of external auditor can be appointed as director or
senior executive of internal audit or finance function of the
Group, within 12 months preceding their employment by the
external auditor to enhance independent reporting by external

auditor.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Nomination Committee in August 2009
with specific terms of reference (as last amended and restated
with effect from 10 June 2019) for the purpose of setting out
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of Directors to the Board. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprised one executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr. Lam Kwan Sing. Its written terms of
reference cover recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, the management of board succession and
monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report included:

(@) reviewing and discussing the Board's structure, size and
composition, diversity as well as the competence,
experience, academic background and qualification of its

members;

(b) reviewing retirement of Directors by rotation, the re-
appointment of retiring Directors at annual general

meetings;

(c) assessing the independence of independent non-

executive Directors;

(d) reviewing its terms of reference and making

recommendations for amendments; and
(e) reviewing the board diversity policy and director

nomination policy of the Company and making relevant

recommendations.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Remuneration Committee in May 2006
with specific terms of reference (as amended with effect from 21
June 2013) with principal responsibility to review and give
recommendation to the Board regarding the remuneration
package of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company taking into consideration of the market practice,
competitive market position and individual performance. During
the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprised one executive Director,
namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr. Lam
Kwan Sing.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report included:

a. reviewing and making recommendations on the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior

management; and

b. reviewing the remuneration policy of the Company and

making recommendations for amendments.

During the process of consideration, no individual Director was

involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate governance
function, the Board and the Committees shall be responsible
for (a) developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (c) reviewing and monitoring the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the
code of conduct applicable to employees and Directors; and (e)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and

disclosure in the corporate governance report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the

Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

70  Annual Report 435 2019/20

SR ERMAE
REGRE BB 2 BEDE

KRR @FFT R ARRARERE AR
RER YREFSREES  b)&s &mﬁ?%
ELERERBZBIINBETERR  Q®BF
RERARBESR —r/ifi&ﬁ“:%ﬁrﬁﬁﬁZBwﬁ

RER: AFIF R kEREANEERES
BT R R(e) R A AR ETEREIETE

ZERREREARENIREEER

CEFECEHNALEER

=
ofF &
h
3
HE
il
fu)
=



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and
in presenting the interim and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules. Members of the management have provided
the Board with monthly updates and sufficient information for
the Board to develop and maintain a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group is in accordance with the statutory requirements
and the applicable accounting standards. The Directors also
ensure that the publication of the financial statements of the
Group is in a timely manner.

The Company engaged BDO Limited as its external auditor for
the Year. The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature
and the service charges of non-audit services for (i) the
procedures agreed upon in connection with the annual results
announcement for the Year; (ii) the additional services in
connection to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Hao
Tian Credit Company Limited; and (iii) the procedures agreed
upon in connection to the acquisition of 15% equity interest in
Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited and considered that
these non-audit services have no adverse effect on the
independence of the auditor. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.
Details of the fees paid/payable to BDO Limited during the
Year are as follows:
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Audit services* BIZARTE 2,880,000
Non-audit services IEFZARTE 1,118,000
Total 185 3,998,000

The amount included in auditor’s remuneration disclosed in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements. Differences represent the over-
provision of audit fees incurred in the previous year.

*Note:

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements for the
Year is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 80
to 90 of this annual report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for its consideration. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing

the suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

o business experience relevant and beneficial to the
Company, diversity in all its aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and
skills

e  character and integrity
o accomplishments in personal careers
o independence

e willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties

as a Board member,

and such other perspectives relevant to the Company's
business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations of candidates for the Board’'s consideration

and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Declaration and
payment of dividends are subject to the discretion of the Board.
The Board would consider, inter alia, the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividend to the

shareholders:
(@) the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

(c) the level of the Company's debts to equity ratio, return on

equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be

imposed by the Company’s contracting parties;

(e) the Company’s expected working capital requirements

and future expansion plans;

() general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Company's business and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and
(9) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the

Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be

paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has the overall responsibility for overseeing sound
and effective internal controls and risk management for the
Group to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and the
assets of the Group at all times. In this connection, an internal
control and risk management system has been established to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage or mitigate rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve the Group's business

objectives.

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal
control which is consistent with the principles outlined in the
“Internal Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants as illustrated below:
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Monitoring ° Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
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o Internal audits performed by internal audit department
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Information and Communication o Information in sufficient details is provided to the right person timely
B REA kEREGEALTRERIFREZER

° Channels of communication across the Group and with customers,

suppliers and external parties
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o Channels of communication for people to report any suspected

improprieties
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Control Activities °
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carried out
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Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are

ZBREIRFF

o Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties,

authorization, physical count, access control, documentation and

records, etc.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND AZEZE - B EERHEKM (&)
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (Continued)

Risk Assessment

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors

[ B R A affecting the achievement of the Company’s objectives are
performed regularly
EHRG - FIENHEREERARF AR ZEEZRRE R
o Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified
REA BITENAE IR PRI 2 A
Control Environment . Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity
EEERIRIR and high ethical standards to the staff are established

RIURBAE TEEARNRHNEFTHERSBERE
e Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and

communicated to staff concerned
HE W MR B TEERRIRBELER
o Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of

authority are set

RN R RBE KA R B E [ R

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management system, reporting
regularly the results to the Board through the Audit Committee
and making recommendations to the relevant department

management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had conducted
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system
covering all material factors related to financial, operational,
compliance controls, various functions for risk management and
physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit
Committee during the Audit Committee meetings and had

been delivered to all Directors for review.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (Continued)

The Audit Committee had reported during the Audit
Committee meetings the key findings identified by the
Company's external auditors in respect of the Group's internal
controls and discussed findings and actions or measures taken
in addressing those findings. The Company considers the
internal control systems and risk management are effective
during the Year. No material issues on the Group's internal
control system have been identified by the Group's internal
audit department and the Company’s external auditors during
the Year which required significant rectification measures.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
Model Code for the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping, was appointed as a company secretary on 1
February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise in
Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong.
She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
has many years of experience in advising on corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, regulatory
and compliance matters. Prior to joining the Company, she was
the company secretary and general counsel of China Shandong
Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
412). Ms. Chan has a bachelor of laws degree and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong
Kong. She also has a master of corporate finance degree from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

During the Year, Ms. Chan has received no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure that the investors and the Shareholders
receive accurate, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group by publication of announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. All shareholders’ communications are also

available on the Company's website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend and the external auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to address
Shareholders’ queries. In case of any extraordinary general
meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other
transaction that is subject to independent shareholders’
approval, members of the independent Board committee will

also make an effort to attend to address Shareholders’ queries.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the

Shareholders at general meetings would be taken by poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the
"EGM") shall be convened on the requisition of any one or
more Shareholder(s) (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at

general meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and the EGM shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) may do
so in the same manner, and shall be entitled to reimbursement

of all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s).
Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”), which is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under the
Policy, information of the Group shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through annual general meetings,
extraordinary general meetings, financial reports, and its
corporate communications and other corporate publications on
the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company'’s information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Any such questions shall be first directed to
the Company Secretary:
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting enquiries to the Board (Continued)

By post

Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F
Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

By email

jovey.chan@haotianhk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the

Shareholders’ meetings.
Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

Shareholder shall follow Article 58 of the Articles of Association
for including a resolution at any general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Shareholders’ right to convene
extraordinary general meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and public investors.
The Company updates the Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and
interim reports. The corporate website of the Company
(http://www.haotianhk.com) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no changes in the constitutional documents of the

Company during the Year.
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18 3 2 B E R

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Hao Tian Development Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hao
Tian Development Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the "Group”) set out on pages 91 to 309,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“"Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.
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Impairment assessment of loan receivables

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of loan receivables
was HK$786,512,000 after making net loss allowance of
approximately HK$91,501,000.

Expected credit loss (“"ECL") on loan receivables is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL (“12m ECL"), unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant receivables.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. Assessment is done based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at

the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

We identified the assessment of loss allowance on loan
receivables as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments prepared by management are complex and involve
a significant degree of judgment and estimates which may be
inherently uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
Refer to Note 25 and the accounting judgements and estimates

set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment

of loan receivables included the following:

o Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the

calculation of the ECLs;

e Assessing the loan receivables ageing report by group
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due by comparing the details of individual items with

underlying invoices and agreements on a sample basis;

e  Obtaining an understanding of the basis of management’s
approach to measuring ECLs of loan receivable balances
and assessing the reasonableness of management'’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgments, including testing
the accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rate are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-

looking information;

o Comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to loan receivable balances at
31 March 2020 with bank statements and relevant

underlying documentation on a sample basis;

o Engaging an independent and qualified valuation
specialist to assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by the independent valuer appointed by the Group in the
preparation of the calculation of the ECLs with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards; and

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of

the independent professional valuer.
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Impairment assessment of goodwill and non-financial
assets

The Group has goodwill of HK$12,557,000, intangible assets of
HK$173,357,000 and property, plant and equipment of
HK$410,656,000 as at 31 March 2020, which were allocated to
the cash-generating units. In determining the amount of
recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGUs"), the
Group engaged an independent professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The value in use calculation applied by the
management is determined based on the cash flow projection
for the CGU discounted to its present value and it requires the
use of key assumptions, including the discount rate, terminal
growth rate, budgeted revenue, and gross margin, taking into
account the financial budgets approved by the directors based
on the performance of the relevant business and also the
management'’s expectations for the market development. An
amount of impairment loss on goodwill of HK$86,357,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2020.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and non-
financial assets as a key audit matter due to its complexity and
significant judgement exercised by the Group’s management in
determining the recoverable amounts of CGUs where goodwill
and non-financial assets have been allocated. Refer to Notes 15,
20 and 21 and the accounting judgements and estimates set

out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment

of goodwill and non-financial assets included the following:

o Understanding the Group's impairment testing process,
including the valuation model adopted, the CGUs
allocation, assumptions used and the involvement of

independent valuer appointed by the Group;

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of

the independent professional valuer;

e  Engaging our independent and qualified valuation expert
to evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation model

adopted and discount rate used;

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the budgeted revenue
and gross margin by considering the approved financial
budgets, the managements business, entity-specific

information, the available industry and market data;

o Re-performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the

recoverable amount of the CGUs; and

o Comparing financial budgets used in the calculation of
value in use with actual results for the annual assessment
of impairment as at 31 March 2020.
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Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

The carrying amount of the Group's financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") as at 31 March 2020
amounted to HK$171,490,000.

In determining the fair value of financial liabilities at FVTPL, it
requires the uses of key assumptions, including selection of
appropriate valuation technique and currently available market

data adjusted for specific features of these instruments.

We identified the valuation of financial liabilities at FVTPL of the
Group as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the significant judgments associated with
determining the carrying value. Refer to Note 19 and the
accounting judgements and estimates set out in Note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the valuation of financial
liabilities at FVTPL included the following:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of

the independent professional valuers;

e  Obtaining an understanding from the independent
professional valuers about the valuation techniques,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgemental

areas, key inputs and data used in the valuations; and
o Engaging independent and qualified valuation specialists

to evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation model
adopted and key assumptions used in the valuation.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

B AR

FHRAEMBER
EERHHEMEMREBER - A EAREBRENH
BERRFERANERN  ETBREEE MR
K ERPIREBF L OZBRE RS -

X

BAESEEMBRERNELL MRERLMER
BT TSRS EMERBERETATANERE

EFHO

HERMESEEMBHRROET - HANEER
BEHEMERN  EUERY  EREMEAZS
B S P BHRRARMERHBETAERNITE
MEFEERBEREUTFFEERHERBULNE
o BERBMEBTHIIE - WREMRBAEM
BRFEEREREL  RABTEHREZEE -
rETE  RFPRBEMRS

ESRGREUBRREARENER

L BERBEEESHASBRMN(EENE
E YEREBECARHEDD MW EZREEHE
TENEEMBHREK  UHERRBRELS
ﬁ?fﬁ#&i’%ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁTTEﬂﬂﬁ/\ﬁkE’FiﬁaEbeﬁﬁ 4
BEAERRAMFOAIZEFHEE

ERERAVMBHRERE  EFAHNE E5E
FEKENRES  YHEERBR T RERSERL
LEHNEER URERFELESSER
RAEZERK BEEEBRIIFLEE 25
BEHMBERNEANDE -

Annual Report %25 201920 87



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 3 2 B E R

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the
terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
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e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Wan Che Bun

Practising Certificate no. P05804

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HitzEEaR

?"I;:/\ =\/

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 %zi

TERCREZA=THUFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mk FET FET
Revenue PN 5 295,645 319,513
Cost of revenue WA AR (129,048) (166,174)
Gross profit EF| 166,597 153,339
Other income E g A 6 90,432 27,519
Other gains and losses HubWzs R EE 7 67,280 (303,503)
Administrative expenses TR (188,524) (219,488)
Expected credit loss on financial assets & g4 & 2 B (= & & 18 (270,874) (2,626)
Share of profit of associates DAEEEE AN R 9,536 159
Share of profit of joint ventures DMEE B ERF 41,554 5,453
Finance costs B E AR 8 (183,229) (141,430)
Loss before taxation MR T4 R E 18 (267,228) (480,577)
Taxation (expense)/credit BE(Exk) HEe 9 (10,515) 63,941
Loss for the year FEARER 10 (277,743) (416,636)
Other comprehensive expense: Hih 2 EFX
Items that will not be reclassified to TeEF L EEERCHE -
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in NEEFFEREZ(EETA
equity instruments at fair value ﬁéfﬁiﬁuﬁmZ%ﬁnIﬁ
through other comprehensive KREZ A HEEE
income (6,916) (5,718)
ltems that may be reclassified AJBERRE BN DR E B
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
Exchange difference arising on BREBINEBEECEREZRE
translation of foreign operations (44,203) (4,667)
Other comprehensive expense FREMEERAS - BRHEE
for the year, net of tax (51,119) (10,385)
Total comprehensive expense FRE2ERZEE
for the year (328,862) (427,021)
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For the Year ended 31 March 2020 2 -2 - ZE4€ = A =1+—HILFE

2020 2019
—BE-BF  _ZTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{5 THER FERT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: E(RGE R (E48), S5 F
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZZ =N (283,718) (380,871)
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR RS 5,975 (35,765)
(277,743) (416,636)
Total comprehensive (expense) income JE(EFERN2ME (Fis) Wi a5
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RAREAA (335,464) (388,376)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 6,602 (38,645)
(328,862) (427,021)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — ER K8 GBAL) 14 (4.91) 7.71)

92  Annual Report 35 2019/20



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI ERE

At 31 March 2020 R = ZE-ZEF=A=+—8”

2020 2019
—ECEF  —_T-NHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE FET FHET
Non-current assets EMENEE

Property, plant and equipment M - B NG 15 410,656 449,684
Investment properties "EYE 16 1,431,696 1,381,320
Prepaid lease payment FENHEERIR 17 - 11,239

Financial assets at fair value through NAFEESEREE (LA
profit or loss BansoREE 19 174,666 239,752

Financial assets designated at fair BEURAFEE8EE

value through other SFAHEMEERE SR
comprehensive income BE 18 351,618 117,525
Goodwill [EES 20 12,557 98,914
Intangible assets M EE 21 173,357 174,857
Finance lease receivables AT EEW A 2 3,484 6,901
Loan receivables JEUE X 25 88,684 114,689
Corporate notes TEEE 28 144,001 -
Investments in associates MREE AT ZIRE 26 93,945 78,402
Investments in joint ventures REEDREZIRE 27 451,417 165,387
Deferred tax assets EIEFIEE BE 33 56,448 52,856
Pledged bank deposits BRI ER 24 5,000 4,654
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 24 1,345 =

Deposits for acquisition of property, ~ WEWE - BELREZFTS

plant and equipment 24 407 3,657
3,399,281 2,899,837
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B HE IR R R R

At 31 March 2020 h—ZE-ZEF=A=+—8H

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hNHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FHET FHET
Current assets MENVEE
Inventories =g 23 89,273 5,513
Trade receivables FEURBR J 24 60,809 83,623
Other receivables, deposits HabEUGRIE « ATe RTEN
and prepayments I8 24 51,256 18,715
Loan receivables JEUE X 25 697,828 440,583
Finance lease receivables AT EEW A 22 3,626 7,104
Consideration receivable ERE 29 = 95,183
Corporate notes TEEE 28 130,473 254,474
Financial assets at fair value through NAFEESEREE (LA
profit or loss BHRZeomEE 19 199,294 1,404,065
Tax recoverable Al U Bl A IE = 2,740
Prepaid lease payment T HEEIA 17 - 276
Bank balances, trust and RITEEER - EENBYRP
segregated accounts 24 19,720 7,266
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NI 24 381,724 267,040
1,634,003 2,586,582
Assets classified as held for sales DEEFIELEEE 30 = 68,086
Total current assets MEVEEME 1,634,003 2,654,668
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI ERE

At 31 March 2020 R = ZE-ZEF=A=+—8”

2020 2019
—EIEF —ZTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FATT
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERTER IR 31 37,225 14,869
Other payables, deposits HmpEMHIE - 2WETe &k
received and accruals FEztE IR 31 49,235 56,407
Contract liabilities EHAEE 31 352 628
Borrowings Ep= 34 757,654 622,645
Obligations under finance leases B A FH &R E 36 = 4,153
Financial liabilities at fair value UAFEAE BEZLETA
through profit and loss BazemaE 19 171,490 185,249
Lease liabilities MEAE 36 12,371 -
Tax payables JES 18 21,014 8,043
1,049,341 891,994
Liabilities directly associated with HAMARIEHNEEER R
assets classified as held for sale HEsaE 30 - 40
Total current liabilities MBI B ERRE 1,049,341 892,034
Net current assets MENEEFE 584,662 1,762,634
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRLEARE 3,983,943 4,662,471
Non-current liabilities FERHARE
Borrowings ETE 34 975,850 1,458,258
Secured notes BIRHERE 32 350,000 350,000
Obligations under finance leases BB A E A IE 36 - 5,704
Convertible note payable FEf AT AR R AR 35 71,668 =
Lease liabilities HEEE 36 28,290 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEAE 33 61,977 64,542
1,487,785 1,878,504
Net assets BEFE 2,496,158 2,783,967
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B HE IR R R R

At 31 March 2020 h—ZE-ZEF=A=+—8H

2020 2019
—EIEF —ZTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FATT
Capital and reserves BARK#iE

Share capital A& 2 40 60,919 52,848
Reserves 1 41 2,429,257 2,577,956

Equity attributable to owners RNRATVEA AELER
of the Company 2,490,176 2,630,804
Non-controlling interests IEVE R o 5,982 153,163
Total equity TS RRE 2,496,158 2,783,967

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 309 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Fok Chi Tak
DIRECTOR
EF
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 2 —Z - ZF=A=+—HILFE

Share Total
options and attributable
Statutory ~ emolument Put  Convertible to owners Non-
Share Share surplus shares Fvroc Special ~ Translation Other option notes  Accumulated ofthe  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ Company ~interests equity
NATEHE
BRER BES{LHA 0
tERE  RERR  Ef2E AAME  TERES N
BE  BHER & B GEZRE  BERE  ENBE  EHEE i fE  RiFE  BGRE FERRR  BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000
i TEn Fir Fhn Thn Tin Fihn i T T i TEn Fin T
(note @) (note b) (note¢) (note d)
(Hita) (Fzb) (Wit (Witd)
At31 March 2018 RZF-/\E=A=1-H 48980 4273404 3539 800 (213034 (5,754) 8,617 (65,774) 5238 - (1325%) 2733451 256,189 2989646
Loss for the year FREE S F3 ¥ - - h 5 S - 80T (808 (35769 (1663
Other comprehensive expense A2ER S = S > (4:564) = (2941 = S = = (7505) (2880) (10,385)
Total comprehensive expense FREAEFLER
for the year - - - - (4,564) - 2941) - - - (380,871) (388,376) (38,649 (427,021
Deerned acquisiton of interest in RERERRREE
Hao Tian Finance (os defined innote 5) (3 RHzE5) 2 i = - - - - - - 84,151 (5239) - - 893 (893 -
Capital contribution from non-controlling £ REHE3R (7£% R 34(0) 2
interests of Hao Tian International FahERTE
Construction (as defined in note 34(c)) - - - - - - - - - - - - 54,248 54,048
Deemed acquisition of interest in BIEUBENERERER
Hao Tian Inteational Construction ~ (E% RHE34(0) 2HE%
(as defined in note 34(c)) = = = < 5 = = (1792 = = = (1,792 1,792 -
Capital contribution from ultimate RERERE LA (W3 280)
shareholder (Note 28(i) - - - - - - - 40,235 - - - 40,235 - 40,235
Issue of consideration shares EARERH 3726 397 = = = = = = = = = 813 = 813
Issue of emolument shares ARG 142 4858 - - - - - - - - - 5000 - 5000
Change in the Group's ownership REBRRANBLR HAR
interest n exiting subsidiaries BREY = = = = = = = 85,244 = = = 85,244 (41,508) 4373%
At 31 March 2019 RZB-NE=A=1+-H 52,848 4,352,659 3539 800 (217,598) (5,754) 5676 142,064 - - (1,703,430 2,630,804 153,163 2,783,967
(Loss) profitfor the year ER(5R)#7 - - - - - - - - - - (83718)  (283,718) 5975 (277,743
Other comprehensive (expense)income 42 (%) s - - - - (6,916) - (4830 - - - - (1746 621 (51,119
Total comprehensive (expense) income  £R2 (Fx) Wi
forthe year - - - - (6,916) - (44,830) - - - (283718 (335464) 6,602 (328,862)
Share option lapsed BREXK - - - (800) - - - - - - - (800) - (800)
Issue of emolument shares ERRBRG n 2,429 - - - - - - - - - 2,500 - 2,500
Acquisition of non-controlling interestin - IR ERE (2% RM5)
Hao Tian Finance (as defined in IR (F36)
note 5) (Note 37(a)) 8,000 176,000 - - = = = (53,740) - - - 130,260 (130,260) -
Deemed disposal of nterest in BAFHERSRERER
Hao Tian Interational Construction (EZAME M) 2BE
(as defined in note 34(c) Note 37(0)  (HfzE37(0)) - - - - - - - 36,167 - - - 36,167 50,089 86,256
Change in the Group's ownership FEERRENBARZ EAR
interest in exiting subsidiaries EEEY - - - - - - - 11,245 - - - 11,245 (73,612) (62,367)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon BENATFEHEARBIEA
disposal of financial assets at FVTOCI  Efp 2Bl 2 BEER
EHRTERE = = = = (8,566) = = = = = 8,566 - - -
Issue of convertible note (Note 35) BOTARER (M) - - - - - - - - - 15,464 - 15,464 - 15,464
At31 March 2020 W=2-%%4=A=1-H 60919 4,531,088 3,539 - (233,080) (5,754) (39.154) 135736 - 15464 (1,978582) 2,490,176 5982 2,496,158
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 82 —Z T4 =A=+—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

98

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, each of
the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its
net profit after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve. The reserve fund
can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors of these PRC
established subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. During the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019, there was no transfer from accumulated profits to the
statutory surplus reserve since the Group’s PRC subsidiaries incurred net
loss.

Special reserve of HK$5,754,000 represents the difference between the
nominal amount of share capital issued by Winbox (BVI) Limited and the
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the acquired
subsidiaries and Winbox (BVI) Limited respectively arisen from a group
reorganisation occurred in prior years.

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the fair value of the
capital injections from non-controlling shareholders and the carrying
amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests; (ii)
the value of the put option arising from HTM subscription (as defined in
note 19) issued by the Company; (iii) value transferred from non-
controlling interests due to the acquisition of non-controlling interests in
Hao Tian Finance; and (iv) the difference between the fair value of the
subsidiary’s shares acquired in the market and the carrying amount of the
subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests.

Put option reserve represents the fair value of the put option issued by the
Company on date of issue, 13 May 2015.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 2T -ZF=A=+—AIFE

2020 2019
—EZRE —_TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before taxation BRI EE (267,228) (480,577)
Adjustments for: KLUAN B IR -
Interest earned on bank deposits RITTF SKFTERERF B (872) (1,883)
Interest earned on financial assets at REHK AT IR 2 & B & EPTRER
amortised cost B (5,745) (12,254)
Finance costs A& B 183,229 141,430
Expected credit loss on financial assets TRMEECEHREEREE 270,874 2,626
Forfeit of partial payment R WEB D R (78,400) -
Share of profit of associates DG E R R A (9,536) (159)
Share of profit of joint ventures DEEERERT (41,554) (5,453)
Depreciation of property, plant and W HWEIRREBITE
equipment 55,401 52,826
Impairment loss on goodwill EERERE 86,357 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BB REE 2 REREE
equipment - 30,680
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payment {70 & I8 7 R{EEE = 5,000
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TR E IR - 386
Amortisation of premium over prepaid TEREERIB 2w B R
lease payment - 1,360
Impairment loss on interest in an associate A —EH & AR 2w 2 BEEE = 9,009
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E#H 1,500 3,753
Dividend income from financial assets RATEFTEEHEZETA
at fair value through profit or loss/ Ba Htt2ERE 2 2R
other comprehensive income BEZBREBA (932) (1,220)
Share-based payments AR 7 FE AR 3,654 5,000
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEMREZ
and equipment BB (Was) 14,572 (357)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWE AR Z U (32,168) (57,293)
Fair value gain on financial liabilities NAFEAERRB G ARBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss eREeEs AT EKSE (13,759) (37,990)
Fair value gain on investment properties BEYE 2 N AR (139,899) (38,742)
Loss on remeasurement of corporate notes EEt B ¥ 7 i 9.437 =
Unrealised fair value loss on financial U AFEF=EBHEE e ABRR
assets at fair value through profit or loss ZEMEEZREBR AT EEE 7,203 402,644
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 82 —Z T4 =A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EB-EF —T-hNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Operating cash flows before movements in  ZEE B FFI2KELEERE
working capital 42,134 18,826
Decrease in inventories FERLD 2,672 21,903
Decrease in trade receivables R BR FUR 14,680 102,092
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, Han U skIa ~ 5] RIEFUE
deposits and prepayments B (35) 58,408 (1,402
Increase in loan receivables JEUL B R 0 (322,741) (19,932)
Decrease in finance lease receivables R0 E TH & e Y S IE R D 7,443 1,583
Increase in other non-current assets HAuIERmB) A ELL N (2,357) -
Increase in financial assets at fair value NAFEGFEAEE (LT ABRZ
through profit or loss ERVEEEM (156,348) (133,215)
(Increase) decrease in bank balances, IRITHERR - ERERBIERF (35 N)
trust and segregated accounts B (12,454) 37,732
Increase (decrease) in trade payables FEASBRFRE 0 (Rl >) 22,356 (61,765)
Decrease in other payables, Hib kI8 « BUWGET & MERT
deposits received and accruals FIE (8,872) (42,523)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities EHaECHD) M (276) 628
Net cash used in operations LEFRAREFE (355,355) (76,073)
Income tax paid SERIFEEY! (961) (7,850)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% %3 fr AR & 25 (356,316) (83,923)
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 2T -ZF=A=+—AIFE

2020 2019
—EZRE —_TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B A% » BE M&E (35,776) (68,015)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WEMRETSRIE
plant and equipment 55,904 1,161
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — AT B A B FT1S 5K IR 100,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ HENAFETEAHE LA
at fair value through profit or loss BRemEEMSHRIE 1,432,007 -
Placement in pledged bank deposits EREEMRITER (5,000) (27)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RREERIRITIFH 4,654 15,000
Net cash used in acquisition of investment & BUNEE —EIM B A R EERE
property through acquisition of a subsidiary #)ZFTFIR & 558 - (1,291,674)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WY « BERREMNE 2
plant and equipment (407) (2.719)
Dividend income received from financial AT ETE B ES LR A
assets at fair value through profit or loss/ B HhermkzEz et
other comprehensive income BEZREBA 932 1,220
Collection of consideration receivable e EH B ARz EWARE
from disposal of subsidiaries 50,000 108,980
Consideration paid for investment in AR —FEERRZREZEMNKE
an associate (6,151) (9.282)
Consideration paid for investment in HR—EEECEZREZENRE
a joint venture (125,600) (3,934)
Consideration paid for acquisition of I BE > EZIRFT R E
corporate note (156,760) -
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value WA AT ETE B HELETA
through other comprehensive income HErmliarsemEE (320,000) -
Interest received B FE 494 1,883
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SARSREE

For the Year ended 31 March 2020 82 — T - T4 =A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
5% —h
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN)  REZEHRE (FFA)REFHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 994,297 (1,247,407)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BLESEE
Interest paid BEAFLE (152,000) (98,673)
Borrowings raised s 264,527 1,871,821
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (561,425) (662,642)
Repayment of other liabilities EBEHEMmEaE - (6,627)
Repayment of secured notes EBEEERHREE - (155,840)
Repayment of lease liabilities/obligations BEEREaE BMEHRERE
under finance leases (10,526) (4,236)
Repayment of bonds BEES = (217,639)
Capital injection from non-controlling R — B A R FEERAR R 2
shareholders of a subsidiary EE - 97,984
Net cash used in acquisition of WEAREBHMEBARZ
non-controlling interest in SRR PR & F 5
the Group's subsidiaries (62,367) -
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM ®E&EE® (FrA) iBR €35
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (521,791) 824,148
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND B4 RBSZEWE M (R ) T
CASH EQUIVALENTS 116,190 (507,182)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDZRERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 267,040 781,431
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ~ ER#B %
CHANGES (1,506) (7,209)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND REKZBEESRBELSZEEY -
OF THE YEAR REPRESENTED BY BANK BRTESRERE
BALANCES AND CASH 381,724 267,040
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

GENERAL

Hao Tian Development Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate and ultimate holding company
is Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate
controlling shareholder is Ms. Li Shao Yu. The registered
office of the Company is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
Company in Hong Kong is located at Rooms 2501-2509,
25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Group include: (i) money lending;
(i) securities investment; (iii) provision of commodities and
securities brokerage and other financial services; (iv) asset
management; (v) property leasing; and (vi) rental and

trading of construction machinery.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

—REHR

EREREBBRAR(ERATDNERE
HETMAZAERRBRAR - ERGH
REBHMERSGHERAE ([BR]) £
Mo HEERSEIERARANRRBE K
BEEMAY c DHAIEERERAR
MEEERRRAFTLFLL - KXRFZ
FE 3¥ =5 BE 2 72 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY-
1111, Cayman Islands - KR & 2 BB E
EEEMBMNRBBET B EBEOESH
22 A0 2548 2501-2509 = °

ARRAEREER AT MAEBZEE
BB ()RE () BHRE (i)t
Mm: BHEELEREMESRRE  (VE
EERE WHERE: RviBEKWHE
ERZS -

AEBHZEEMBRRAET((HERT]) 2
5 MATLTABARRRZNEE -
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied for the first time the following

new and revised standards and interpretation (“new
and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")

which are effective for the Group’s financial year

beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendments, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations;
HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements; HKAS 12,
Income Taxes and HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases has
been summarised below. The other new or amended
HKFRSs that are effective from 1 April 2019 did not

have any significant impact on the Group's

accounting policies.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16, “Leases” replaces the previous standards
HKAS 17 “Leases” and effective for the current year
beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Group has
applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current

year.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance costs. The finance costs are charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-

line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that are based on an

index or a rate;

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

2.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. RAFATERUBREEIN(ER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MHmEZER ) REMEET (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) 2.1 RWNHET KBTI EBMEREE
Al (&)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued) HRANBEBUBREERE16 K2 HE
(#)

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the e BEHEZITHEE(MMAMEAS
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that BIEESITE BB - &
option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, o AR IFTEE 2 SRR (e 1H B i
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising MATTEZEARE) -
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the HENREREEEEN XA - &

incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use assets are AT EZEREEERIETYIAR ¢

measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease e HMHEABZVRITESE:
liabilities;

* any lease payments made at or before the o (EAIERMRBEHZAELZE
commencement date less any lease incentives B R RORNE ] 2 Y ERAE & 22
received;

e any initial direct costs; and o EAIVBEERAE: R

*  restoration costs. o  BERAK-

Payments associated with short-term leases are EAE HAMH AR 2 IR B ARE N 1B

recognised on a straight-line basis as expenses in mERRAX - HHEENHERR12

profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a BAZATZHE -

lease term of 12 months or less.

106  Annual Report %25 2019/20



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group

applied the following recognition exemption and

practical expedients at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets to leases for which the remaining lease
term ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the
lease term ends on or before 31 March 2020;

when measuring the lease liabilities at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar remaining lease
term for a similar class of underlying asset in a

similar economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group relied on the previous assessment for
onerous contract provisions as at 31 March 2019
as an alternative to perform an impairment

review.

2.

RAFAI BBV BRELERN(ER

MBEmERER ) REEET (&)

2.1 BRENEE]RIETERMBRELE
R (&)

RANEENBEREERF16 K&

(#)

RIEFEREFEVHEREERF16
5 AEERBEWBREELE 16
St B R B BR A DA T R R )
AIITREEREG

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

AEEEEIEEBYHREE
A 16 ERERREHER B RE
REEEZRTERAZESR NHEM
REBMBREERIE 165 EH R
FEF B HEEET 1218 A M AR (BD
MR —_ZF-_FF=A=1+—H
HZBIAER) ZTHE

REBMBHREERE 165 EH R
ERRHFEHESRER A&
EHAEAEMRAUSHcHER
ARBE BRI (PImERMU
RERE THEUAR 2 HEE
ERARURNSGEARZHEE)
K

REBHBREERIE 165 EH R
EREMGAECHAREER - X
SEKBEMN _T—NF=H
=t BREEREESNREZT
BIERETRERS BN

.
£

Annual Report 3k 2019/20 107



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The Group has elected to apply its leases
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 16 recognised at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16. Instead of restating
comparative information, the Group shall recognise
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16
as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses at the date of initial application.
The comparative information presented in 2019 has
not been restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

(@) The following table reconciles the operating
lease commitments as lessee as disclosed
applying HKAS 17 as at 31 March 2019 to the
opening balance for lease liabilities recognised
as at 1 April 2019:
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 2 2 —ZF=A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. I EENBREEN(ER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MR EZER ) REBET (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) 2.1 RNHET KBTI EBMEREE
Al (&)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued) BRANEBHBHEERE16 R HE
(#)
(@) (Continued) (@) (#&)
HK$'000
FET
Reconciliation of operating lease REBEAZEEBEERE 2 HER
commitments to lease liabilities
Operating lease commitments RZZE-—AF=A=+—HZ
at 31 March 2019 KB T R IE 11,806
Add: lease included in extension option m: s ARNSERREEETE
which the Group considers reasonably TECEREEEHEE
certain to exercises 1,466
Add: obligations under finance lease m:R—TE-—NF=A=+—H
recognised as at 31 March 2019 Rz R EHE A 9,857
Less: short term leases for which lease B MR T FF
terms end within 31 March 2020 —A=+t—HAERZEHEE (9,350)
Less: future interest expenses B R BRI (208)
Lease liabilities recognised —E-NFHA—BHER
as at 1 April 2019 HEAE 13,571

The weighted average of the lessees’

BE_T-NFHA—B  R®E&

incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities by the relevant group entities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 April 2019 is 4.35% per
annum.

B MR R TR i AHRE & B
ERERNEEAGZAEAN
BIYOEERENXR/EF
4.35% °©
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised as if HKFRS 16 had been
applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Group has also leased certain machinery
and motor vehicles which previously were
classified as finance leases under HKAS 17. As
the Group has elected to adopt the cumulative
effect method over the adoption of HKFRS 16,
for those finance leases under HKAS 17, the
right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease
liabilities at 1 April 2019 were the carrying
amount of the lease assets and lease liabilities
under HKAS 17 immediately before that date.
For those leases, the Group has accounted for
the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities
applying HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #2224 =A=+—HBILFE

2. RMHATBEBMBHRELENTEE
MBEmERER ) REEET (&)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) 2.1 B RETTEBBBRE
Bl (&)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued) RNE BN EREERE16 2 HE
(4)
(b) The following table summarised the impact of b) TEBMEBEEFEMBREE
transition to HKFRS 16 on the consolidated AIE16RER T —NF=H
statement of financial position as of 31 March =+—HBE_ZE-NFOA— E!

2019 to that of 1 April 2019:

2 FrE B S AR OR S 2R P 1 K
-

Increase in
N
HK$'000
FAETT

Consolidated statement of financial R-ZE—h&EW™A—HZ

position as at 1 April 2019 e A Bk

Right-of-use assets EREEE 3717
Lease liabilities (current) HEAE(RE) 5,902
Lease liabilities (hon-current) HEEEGERE) 7,669
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 8#Z —Z - ZF#=A=+—HItFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(c)  The remaining contractual maturities of the
Group's lease liabilities at the date of transition
of HKFRS 16 are as follows:

RMHAIBEREMBRELER(HFE
MEmERER ) R EETT (&)

2.1 BRENER]RIETE R BRELE
R (&)

RAEEBEREERF16 K2 RHE
(#)

@ REBUBRESERFE 165 2E
BB AEBHERBZHRT
BREMBEMT

1 April 2019
—E-hFmA—A
Present
value of Total
the minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments

REEE REESE
NREE e S

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT

Within 1 year —&FR 5,902 6,368
After 1 year but within 2 years —FIRERFA 4,922 5,142
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRFA 2,747 2,797
13,571 14,307
Less: Total future interest expenses Ji : AR F| B F s 44%8 (736)
Present value of lease liabilities HEABRE 13,571
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(Continued)

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liabilities, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use assets, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. This
results in a positive impact on the reported
profit from operations in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, as compared to
the results if HKAS 17 had been applied during
the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
Group as a lessee is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element. These elements
are classified as financing cash outflows, similar
to how leases previously classified as finance
leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. The adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a change in
presentation of cash flows within the

consolidated statement of cash flows.

RAFAI BBV BRELERN(ER
MBEmERER ) REEET (&)

2.1 BRENEE]RIETERMBRELE
R (&)

BNEEBMBEHEERAE16H2ZE

(#)

(c)

(&)

R-T—NFMA—BHniER
EREEEREEREBR  AK
B (ERAEA) AEREERE
el R B R RS BRI AT 2 M B B T )2
EREEENE - MIFRTATK
KR ERARBEREEREEN
EETELZHEMX - BREK
FRERATEGERFE 7R
BRIELE HBBHARELR
cHEakEMEHRERAZR
ZREBNEETEZE

REERERERA A5HE
(TERABAN) AR EARcHER
TENHEEDHBEREED KF
BED - BERREBEEGE
A7 RO B AREMEEZHEE
HEARET AEE - BRSNS E
DRABERSREMIFLER
TR MEBEHERFE 175
HTREHEETA - At 54
ERUBEREENE 16 RGBT
ERENERARESREZZS
FTAHMBEE -
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over
how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting

for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The
entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “"most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better

predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The adoption of these amendments has no impact

on these financial statements as the Group has no

uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are

met — instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any prepayment features with negative

compensation.

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan Amendments,
Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions
to determine its current service cost and net interest
for the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset
ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or
loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with

separately in other comprehensive income.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any defined benefit plan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to
long-term interests (“LTI") in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment in the
associates or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS
9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment
losses guidance within HKAS 28.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have long-term interests in associates or joint

ventures.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which
clarifies that when a joint operator of a business
obtains control over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be

remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any transaction in which it obtains control over

a joint operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates in,
but does not have joint control of, a joint operation
which is a business and subsequently obtains joint
control of the joint operation, the previously held
equity interest should not be remeasured to its

acquisition date fair value.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any transaction in which it obtains joint control

of the joint operation.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which
clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
are recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

2.

RAFAI BBV BRELERN(ER
P mERER ) R EEFT (&)

2.1 BRENEE]RIETERMBRELE
R (&)

BEEMBERERRN —F—RFE_F
—tFBHZFERE — EBUHR
ERERAE1 5[ EELRH 2 155T

RIFFENEBRRERM Z BT HIRE
Tz ZRERNE L A R A=)
2R BRERBREEEREYHH
SEANENHKZERT  EPHARE
(B 3FHEA KR EGIE) B —HER
BERBZ - HEERREAER
B2 KRS - BB EFRED
BEHTERKBEMZAFE-

RS B3 B IS & & X5
REGIE RS SERAEBETH
ZEPEMERBENTE -

BEBUMBHRELRN —F-—RFE_F
—tFBHZFENE — BEETE
RIE 1255 [ Bris# | 21557

RIFFENEBRRERM Z BT HIRE
TEATE 2 2 0 BIF AR R D =
2 - BREENBREHELGE
I 1258 2 1ER] - EREBRBZP
BAIRRERDREEL T HECHE A
RSBz AR BINEE -
Hip 2 s B RN iR o

Annual Report 3k 2019/20 117



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes
(continued)

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as there were no
income tax consequences to the dividends

distributed by the Group during the year.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain
a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
use or sale would become part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and therefore included in the
general pool.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any borrowing made specifically to obtain a
qualifying asset.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 2 2 —ZF=A=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. RAFATERUBREEIN(ER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MHmEZER ) REEET (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and 2.2 ERERZHFHTER - RERER
amendments not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and AR MR AR B W ERZEERE
amendments, which are not yet effective and have IRATER N 2 $TRT R - 2218 RIEFT
not been adopted early in these financial statements, R RS EREBARRIBERE -

will or may have an effect on the Group's future

financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material' BB ERE 1 FEAZEER'
and HKAS 8 LEBETHER
E 8K ZIEF]
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate BEAMBHRERER FIEREERE
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Benchmark Reform’ FoN% - BREE
HRIE 39 K
BB BEHREER
FTH2IEET
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business' BEAMBHREED EB2ER'
FI3W2IBE]
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BEREVBHRELEN REBREK?
E17 5%
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of BEAMBHmERED REEH
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Assets between an F10HLEB HE & N A
Investor and its BETAERIE 2858 gEE
Associate or Joint ZAEET i
Venture? BEHEN
A3
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related BRI HRELER  COVID-1918#
Rent Concessions* ERY vl ) HeEE
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and
amendments not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

g The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
period beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments continues to be permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group's accounting policies and

consolidated financial statements.
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for equity investments which have
been measured at fair value. Assets classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell as further explained in note 3.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Notwithstanding that the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$584,662,000 as at 31 March 2020, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the assumption that the Group can be operated as a

going concern.

In preparing the cash flow projection by the management,
it was assumed that the realisation of assets, the
attainment of profitable and possible cash flow operations,
and consideration of alternative source of funding.
Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its
future working capital and other financing requirements in
the next twelve months and the consolidated financial

statements are prepared under going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made in the
consolidated financial statements to write down the values
of the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of
such adjustments has not yet been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use. Fair value under HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHEBXGE)

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the

Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and

to the non- controlling interests.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity transactions,
balances, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group's equity therein.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity including reserves and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the proportionate share of net assets attributable
to the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-
attribution of the relevant equity component, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a

transaction-by-transaction basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the

amounts recognised at that date.
Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a

change in any of these elements of control.

3.

TEEBER (8)

EBE 0 (8

FIEBRES SR BEERED  RESAA
RBEERLIDEEBRBERAREEF
B - AR AP ESIFERE SR LA
DMEWBH R A BRI EEFE O HAHE
At E o FFEEEARER R HEE -

WEBEHZ NP ETTRERETEHZHR
EHIRDARTAK - BIAREEF DR ST
REZEABEHREESH - ZFETLER
AAEMAELEE  YTHRABIEERE
& ARBBENEERHEFESERIBR
BEZHEH(RMAEZEEH  $aveE
RNEBBRZEHE) -

RNBARZRE

B A B RARR AT M ETEEEZKE
HR - MARAT2B=AEXK - XQF
BIEHA I EH R - AREFIREHR &
BEREEXREREHRAZEH AR E
Mo ARAERERIZEZENEOR -
EEERBABRNEZEFEGEERE
BB HEEMFEEGE -

Annual Report 3k 2019/20 127



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists the
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,

including:

e The size of the Company's voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who

hold voting rights;

° Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting rights;

e Other contractual arrangements; and
. Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group's share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group's interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor's share in the associate’'s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in joint ventures

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and
at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under

the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as

either:

e Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only

the net assets of the joint arrangement; or
e  Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of

the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint

arrangements, the Group considers:
e The structure of the joint arrangement;

e  The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

e  The contractual terms of the joint arrangement

agreement; and

e Any other facts and circumstances (including any

other contractual arrangements).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group's share of post-acquisition changes in the joint
ventures’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group’s interest in the joint venture are not recognised

unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits or losses arising on the transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture.
The investors' share in the joint venture's profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the joint venture. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the assets transferred

they are recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in a joint venture has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-financial

assets.

The Group's interests in joint ventures are stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint ventures are
accounted for by the Group on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

3.

TEEBER (8)

REBLEEZRE (H)

BECERABDAANR Bt §ED
KNP ATER - AREERRERAE
BohaetEEEFEZ WBRESEL
AR EBHARERA LR ZERZE
BATHER  RIFEETCREZSERAE

Bl o

AEBEASGLECRETRIEL 2B
EATHRAKREENALELE ZEHARRT
iR - WEEBN A ELRAZREXHM
EEZRSREAECEZREELH - MK
BREREAMEREELTRE  AIRE
BB RS MRS FERR -

HEECEMINBRAEED (5 FTUEERT
BREE  BERIABEZEMEESE
REXR UG ARBECEZREZERR
B WEEBEBERTINAERR ZREH
BRfE - AIREZREESRAAEMIES
BEEMRR . ETRERR -

AREER G E D E 2 BRI R EE
B(A)JER - AEBERS KR EKEE R
HERAELRIEEAK -

Annual Report 3k 2019/20 131



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 8z =%

3.

“EE=ZA=+-RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not

larger than operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash- generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of

cash-generating units).
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

e  provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHEBXGE)

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sale of rental machinery, machinery and spare parts

Customers obtain control of the machinery and spare
parts when the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time
basis upon when the customers accepted the machinery
and spare parts. There is generally only one performance

obligation.
Provision of transportation service

Revenue of transportation service is recognised over time,
based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. Transportation services are
generally provided within one day. There is generally only

one performance obligation.

Provision of dealing and broking services on asset
management, securities, commodities and future

Commission income generated from asset management,
securities brokerage, commodities and futures are
recorded as income on a trade date basis at a point in
time when the control of relevant contract notes or
services are transferred to customers. Control of the
promised goods or services are transferred to the
customer on completion of delivery of the goods or
services. There is generally only one performance
obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Income from other financial services

Income from other financial services is satisfied over time
when the Group transfers control of the services over time,
based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. There is generally only one

performance obligation.
Repair and maintenance service income

Revenue of repair and maintenance services is recognised
over time when the Group transfers control of the services
over time, based on the actual service provided to the end
of the reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided, because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously. Repair and
maintenance services are generally provided within one

day. There is generally only one performance obligation.

Revenue generated from retailing of men’s and
women's apparels

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers within
retail stores and wholesale customers from the warehouse.
Revenue recognised from sale of goods to retail customers
is recognised when the product is transferred to the
customers upon sale. Payment of the transaction price is
due immediately when the customers purchase the good.
The payment is usually settled in cash or using credit
cards, Wechat pay and Alipay online platform. For
wholesale, customers obtain control of the casual apparels
when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is recognised upon when the customers accepted
the casual apparels. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Wholesale customers are

required to pay in advance before delivery of goods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating lease is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they are earned.
Revenue from other sources

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from finance leases and operating leases is described in

the accounting policy for leasing below.
Interest income generated from money lending

Interest income was generated from money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans, machinery
loans, personal loans and margin loans. Revenue
represents interest income earned from loans offered to

the Group's customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis using the
effective interest method by apply applicable interest rate
on (i) the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount less
loss allowance for credit-impaired financial assets) or (ii)
the gross carrying amount for non-credit impaired financial

assets.
Other income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

136  Annual Report %25 2019/20

TEEBER (8)

LON:+4¢ )
REHEGZHEZTKA

REBEEETRKES K ARESMMEER
BT Bzt Algs - IR THEESER
BRERREYEE RN RER 2 ERER
IREENEEEZ ST HFEER AWK

4 e
A °

AR Z YA

AEBEHRAMEHENEEHERAZ
SRTEREN TXEE ST ERE M -

HEELZFERA

MBBMAKRBREEMERBER  ERE
F o BAAERERRIBEERZHEER - W
ANERASEEETPRHEE AR Z A B WK
A o

M EBWAABR A FRIRSHEERG - I
() EEAA (AL IREERESREEZ
AR ER B BB ) 3K (1) W& MR EER
BEeMEE RMAERNERME -

AR A

BB B R BESL W A A - B B AERE
ZREBENmB AR AR KE IS S EERE
sn] S At BT RERR o



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been

expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
(i)  Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a
cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A. Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgement and determines that is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use
asset arising from the properties under tenancy

agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The
lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's

incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments: (i)
fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv)
the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the

lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A. Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Lease Liability (continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.
Accounting as a lessor

As the accounting under HKFRS 16 for a lessor
is substantially unchanged from the
requirements under HKAS 17, the adoption of
HKFRS 16 does not have significant impact on

these financial statements.

The Group leases certain of its buildings under
operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms from one year to ten years
to third-party companies. Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect

of the leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTER(E)
(Continued)

A. Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1 A HE(B=ZZE-NFHA—BEE

April 2019) (Continued)
(iii) Accounting as a lessor (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
March 2019)

The Group as lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the

leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

B.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
March 2019) (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease

obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy above). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental

expense on a straight-line basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at initial recognition.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold

land is under finance lease.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than art works as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Art works are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than art works) over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Machinery 10%

Yacht 5%
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Art works are stated at cost less any identified impairment

loss (if any).

The leasehold land and building of the Group are held
under medium-term lease in Hong Kong and amortised

over the term of lease of 30 years.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned

assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.
Right-of-use asset included the right to use certain
properties under leases which are measure at cost. The

initial costs of right-of-use asset include the following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

— any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date
— any initial direct costs, and
—  restoration costs.
Right-of-use asset are depreciated over the shorter of the

asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight line

basis.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which

is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below). Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years
Securities licenses are stated at cost less
brokerage licenses any identified impairment

loss (if any)

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below). Any conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible

assets with finite lives as set out above.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

146 Annual Report &% 2019/20

TEEBER (8)

BYEE (&)

BRERGAFRBAERAERAFH BT
BERRAREMNRERTEESRIRE
TXEBRBRLETEERERE 2R
R) - ENEARBTLEERABERAERAFH
ZEMEBERT  NEEEHRBEARE#
B/ EETREERAERSES - i
TEESS - A ERFHF G R ERER
RAR - TEBHAHERE LA ABRA
ERERETEE BHRRIZAMEEEA

BEREBEFEERE(HERMN) (RE
XEBBHEZEEER)

RBEYR - AEBEEHNEAERAIERAE
HMBREMEREEZREE  UEBEEEE
EAFRBTRZEEELTRERR - 1R
FEEMEETR  ReHEENALES
BIELAE AEREBR(NA)HiZ
B - MREAGHEREEMN KRB S -
AEB gt ZEEMBNRSEL BN
ARl S5 o SR AT AR — A& 2 A —3
MOREE  RABEENTEEEFERSE
HEA ETENREEEREELEM
AR AR EEREBRINAIER —BME
EoRER/ I WREELEMAER



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the relevant asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease
for a property which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the

reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement or

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as

held for sale when:
e they are available for immediate sale;
o management is committed to a plan to sell;

° it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will

be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

° an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;

e the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a

reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

e asaleis expected to complete within 12 months from

the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held

for sale are measured at the lower of:

e their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the

Group's accounting policy; and
e fairvalue less costs to sell.
Following their classification as held for sale, non-current
assets (including those in a disposal group) are not

depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are

included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.

3.
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3.

“EE=ZA=+-RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of

the translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of

the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their

inclusion in the cost of an asset.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
weight average method (other than art works). Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and

costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost is valued on a specific identification basis for art
works. Art works are available for immediate sale. Ultimate
timing of the sale is hard to predict given the unique
nature of each art piece and the cyclicality of the global art

market.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the

transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of

principal and interest.
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories

into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on

derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income:
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or

loss.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest
are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting

mismatch.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment'’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes
in fair value, dividends and interest income are

recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“"ECL") on trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan receivables, other receivables and
deposits, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (i) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and (ii) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the

Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to

the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables arising from construction
machinery business, cash clients and other financial
services using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables from margin clients and other
debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90

days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is

more than 90 days past due.
Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at

fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for

trading are recognised in profit or loss.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

TEEBER (8)

Financial instruments (Continued) EWMIE (&)

EHAE (&)

(iii)  Financial liabilities (Continued) (iii)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a
group of financial liabilities which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for the gains and losses arising from the Group's own
credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, other payables and accruals, borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and secured notes
and the debt element of convertible loan note issued
by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit

or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or

liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
Equity instruments

Equity instruments is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled
by a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments are equity
instruments. The net proceeds received from the
issue of warrants are recognised in equity (warrant
reserve). The warrant reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium accounts upon the
exercise of the warrants. When the warrants are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the warrant reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits (losses).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or

loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Call option on subscription of the shares of the
Company

Call options on subscription of the shares of the
Company written to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, which will be settled other than by
exchange of fixed amount of cash for a fixed number
of shares in a subsidiary is treated as derivative and is
recognised at fair value upon initial recognition. Any
changes in fair value in subsequent reporting dates

are recognised in profit or loss.

B ISR R MR

—TECEFEZAZ+—ALFE

TEEBER (8)

ST A ()

(vi)

(vii)

RREE

MARNRET UHUETHERE
HBRBETHENARAR RN EER T
BEEORRESE  BRERIA -
B 1T RARAE 7B FTUCER A P 15 SR IEVF EE
R (RIREE ) HR o RRE
BETEE  RREZFREBE/IERZE
AR AN R AR 1 3 (B AR o fin SR AR 38 A B

HBDARITRE - BISERTR RARAEF
{%ﬁguu i%EJL‘H ﬁ-r%é;ztj%u_l—/ﬁn%lj(%
18) -

LI A
PMTEIARRIIVITETIRGRNERN
NP EVLER - HBRERERRD
NEBEEHE - TS RERD

RIBRAER -

(viii) REBAXFRG ZZRBRE

REHLE T —RNE R A SHERBCR
ZARBBMN 2 RBHREETERE
BETLREReIB-—HHRBLARZ
B EBB BNz T AGEE WG
RITETARRN P HERFRAFE
R RERBEBHELZERMA
FELBHREBEEER

Annual Report 3k 2019/20 163



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ix) Obligation arising from put options on shares of a

(x)

subsidiary written to a non-controlling
shareholder

The gross financial liability arising from the put
option is recognised when contractual obligation to
repurchase the shares of a subsidiary is established
even if the obligation is conditional on the
counterparty exercising a right to sell back the shares
to the Group. The liability for the share redemption
amount is initially recognised and measured at
present value of the estimated repurchase price with
the corresponding debit to the non-controlling
interests. In subsequent years, the remeasurement of
the present value of the estimated gross obligation
under the written put option to the non- controlling

shareholder is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS
9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(x) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in
part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss for the year.
Convertible notes

The component of the convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of issue costs. The
corresponding dividends on those shares are charged as

interest expense in profit or loss.

On the issue of the convertible notes, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for a
similar note that does not have a conversion option; and
this amount is carried as a long-term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or

redemption.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X EEBEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included in the
convertible notes reserve within shareholders’ equity, net
of issue costs. The value of the conversion option carried
in equity is not changed in subsequent years. When the
conversion option is exercised, the balance of the
convertible notes reserve is transferred to share capital or
other appropriate reserve. When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
remained in the convertible notes reserve is transferred to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible notes based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components

in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The value of any derivative features (such as a call option)
embedded in a compound financial instrument other than
its equity component (such as an equity conversion option)
is included in the liability component. The sum of the
carrying amounts assigned to the liability and equity
components on initial recognition is always equal to the
fair value that would be ascribed to the instrument as a
whole. No gain or loss arises from initially recognising the

components of the instrument separately.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are deducted in reporting the related expenses
or recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted the grant in calculating the
carrying amount of the asset that is recognised in profit or
loss over the life of a depreciable asset as a reduced
depreciation expense. An unconditional government grant
is recognised in profit or loss as other revenue when the

grant becomes receivable.
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3.

“EE=ZA=+-RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the

Group's major product lines.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the directors
assess segment profit or loss by gross profit or loss as

measured in HKFRS financial statements.

For the purpose of presenting geographical location of
the Group's revenue from external customers and the
Group’s non-current assets, country of domicile is
determined by reference to the country where the majority

of the Company’s subsidiaries operate.
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Emolument shares

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,

with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative

expense reflects the revised estimate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows

(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
Related parties

For the purposes of the Financial Information, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)y is a member of key management personnel of

the Group or the Company's parent.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group

or an entity related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Company’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. (EETARABEENEERR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or

liabilities affected in the future.
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loan
receivables based on an estimate of the recoverability of
loan receivables basis where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of loan
receivables under HKFRS 9 requires the use of estimates
and judgement. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and provision for impairment
losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changes. The Group uses judgements in making
assumptions and selecting the inputs to its ECLs
calculation based on the Group's past history, possibility
of default, exiting market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of loan receivables and the impairment allowances

are disclosed in note 25.
Impairment assessment of financial assets

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables, finance lease receivables, corporate
note and other non-current assets by assessing the ECLs.
This requires the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs
are based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
possibility of default adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the end of
reporting period. Where the estimation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of financial assets and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. A THABERENEERR ()

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
such as any assets have become obsolete or idle, has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or value
in use which is estimated based upon the continue use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections. Changing the judgment and estimations
adopted by management in assessing impairment,
including the estimated resale values with reference to the
historical disposal values or second-hand market price of
the assets and the estimated future cash flows generating
from the property, plant and equipment with reference to
the historical and expected rental income from leasing for
assets in use, could affect the recoverable amounts used
in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's
financial position and results of operations. As at 31 March
2020, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is approximately HK$410,656,000 (2019:
HK$449,684,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, as the carrying value of the property, plant and
equipment is higher than the recoverable amount,
HK$30,680,000 impairment loss was provided during the
year ended 31 March 2019. No impairment loss has been
provided for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Carrying value of financial instruments not quoted
in an active market

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the carrying value of the
Group's financial assets at FVTPL and financial liabilities at
FVTPL were determined by valuation technique as these
financial instruments do not have a quoted market price.
The directors of the Company use their judgments in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are
applied. In determining the carrying value of these
instruments, assumptions are made based on currently
available market data adjusted for specific features of

these instruments (see note 19 for details).
Impairment assessment on goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which
the assets belong. Determining whether impairment needs
to be provided requires an estimation of future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash generating units. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or a change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise. Details of
the recoverable amount calculation for cash generating

units are set out in note 20.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. A THABERENEERR ()

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Impairment assessment on intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amount of the intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that they have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets are estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if

any.

Determining whether the intangible assets are impaired
require an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
respective cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
intangible assets have been allocated. Recoverable
amount of the respective CGU is determined based on
higher of value in use calculation and fair value less cost to
sell. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to service fee and rental income and
direct costs. Where the actual cash flows are less than

expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Assessing the net realisable value of art works
included in inventories

Valuation of art works is subjective and the net realisable
value fluctuates over time. Management relies on the
valuation opinion of specialists who consider a number of
factors including (i) recent transactions for comparable art
works; and (i) supply and demand and current economic
environment. Due to the subjectivity involved in estimating
the net realisable value, if the artwork market deteriorates
and the overall economic condition were to deteriorate,
actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 52 =T —ZF=F=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WMARDEBESR

2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers ZFEF&#ZIKA
Commission income generated from asset BHE&EBIE « B84  BmM
management, securities brokerage, HAE BRI 2 A WA K
commodities, futures and income from E % @ AR < WA
other financial services 15,236 15,540
Revenue generated from retailing BEERLETERNZBA
of men’s and women's apparels - 1,835
Repair and maintenance and B B RN 2 4B R E
transportation service income DA R 38 s AR TS U A
generated from construction machinery 8,891 9,540
Trading income generated from B R R E T
construction machinery and FREL 2 B S WA (FIFE (a)
sales of construction materials business
(Note (a)) 28,489 54,760
52,616 81,675
Revenue from other sources Bt KIFZ WA
Rental income generated from leasing BHEREYERRHS KA
of investment properties 64,285 66,270
Rental income generated from B S BRER 2 1 2 A
construction machinery (Note (b)) (BT5% (b)) 100,375 98,109
Interest income generated from B E BRELZ A S WA
money lending 74,969 73,459
Interest income from margin financing RECEE 2 F WA 3,400 -
295,645 319,513
Notes: Bt 5
(@)  Amount represents revenue generated from sales of machinery and @ ZEBEAHEERRERTHARHEERER
spare parts and sales of rental machinery. W A 2 Wz o
(b)  Amount represents revenue generated from leasing and sub- (b) ZEeFESHEE REEBRMES 2 W -

leasing of machinery.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WMARZEESR (&)

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHZHWA
a. Disaggregated revenue information a. ZDHUAEH
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_ZE_FTF=-_A=+1—HIFE
Provision
of asset
management,
securities Retailing
brokerage, of
Trading of  Provision of commodities, men's
construction ~ repairand  Provision of  futures and and
machinery and  maintenance transportation other financial women's
spare parts service service services apparels Total
Rt
BEER.
BEHAR FHRL -
wR2H REKBR Rt Bm BER BER
#E RERY Baky HtoRBY TEBE L5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn T
Type of goods or services ERgRHERE
Sale of machinery and spare parts ~ SHEMR R ERZH 25,100 - - - - 25,100
Sale of rental machinery HERGHR 3,389 - - - - 3,389
Transportation service income ERREMA - - 364 = = 364
Repair and maintenance service BERREREMA
income - 8,527 - - - 8,527
Commission income generated BEEE  FHEL-
from asset management, AmRkBEEE
securities brokerage, GERONY
commodities, futures andincome ~ Eftr & BARTE 2 A
from other financial services - - - 15,236 - 15,236
28,489 8,527 364 15,236 - 52,616
Geographical markets BT
Hong Kong i 24,392 7,961 364 15,236 - 47,953
Macau il 4,097 566 - - - 4,663
28,489 8,527 364 15,236 - 52,616
Timing of revenue recognition WARRRH
Ata point in time RE—BREE 28,489 - - 10,768 - 39,257
QOver time BERS ] - 8,527 364 4,468 - 13,359
Total revenue from contract REALZBNA
with customer 28,489 8,527 364 15,236 - 52,616
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 2 2 —ZF=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WMARZEESR (&)

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHRZBA (&)
(Continued)
a. Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) a. ZDEURAEH(HE)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEr—FE—-hNhF=A=+—HIFE
Provision of
of asset
Trading of management,
construction securities Retailing
machinery, brokerage of
spare parts  Provision of commodities, men's
and  reparand  Provisionof  futures and and
construction ~ maintenance  transportation  other financial women's
materials service service services apparels Total
o
BRZAR Epika
BEMH  REBER Rt Bm- HER FER
HE RERB BaRE Htemky REEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT AT TAL AT AT
Type of goods or services ERgRHERE
Sale of machinery and spare parts ~ SHEMR RERZH 46,163 = = = = 46,163
Sale of rental machinery HEHEN 8,597 = = = = 8,597
Transportation service income BERBEA - - 1,549 - - 1,549
Repair and maintenance service HBERFREREYA
income - 7,991 - - - 7,991
Commission income generated BEEE #5048
from asset management, AmRBEEEL
securities brokerage, BeRASR
commodities, futures andincome  Eftr 2B RA 2 A
from other financial services = = = 15,540 = 15, 540
Men's and woman's apparels BRRUETE 1,835 1,835
54,760 7,991 1,549 15,540 1,835 81,675
Geographical markets B
Hong Kong B 54,680 7451 1,528 15,540 - 79,199
Macau ot 80 540 2 - - 641
PRC i - - - - 1835 1835
54760 7991 1,549 15,540 1,835 81,675
Total revenue from contract EEAHZAHA
with customer 54,760 7,991 1,549 15,540 1835 81,675
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z =2 =2 F=A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

a. Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

WAR 2 EER (&)

BEFEHZWA (&)

a. ZDEURAEH(H)

R ENERTAGHABZBA

2020 2019

—EEHF —E—NEF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Sale of machinery and spare parts SHEBW M ERZ M 276 1,951

b. Perf